Coastal Contracts Bhd.

Registration No. 200001015043 (517649-A)

“Sail Forth,
Grow Beyond”

Annual Report

2022



10

13

15

18

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE
OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

CORPORATE INFORMATION

5-YEARS’ GROUP FINANCIAL
SUMMARY

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

22
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
27
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS 30
42
44
45
Scan to download the PDF
version of this Annual Report
46
146
148

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
OVERVIEW STATEMENT

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE
INFORMATION

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIST OF PROPERTIES IN THE GROUP
ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

FORM OF PROXY



Coastal Contracts Bhd. Registration No. 200001015043 (517649-A)
Annual Report 2022

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the Registered
Office, Block G, Lot 3B, Bandar Leila, 90000 Sandakan, Sabah on Thursday, 1 December 2022 at 10:00 am to transact the
following business:

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.  To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 together with
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To approve the payment of fees and benefits to Non-Executive Directors, of up to but not exceeding Resolution 1
the amount of RM170,000 for the period from 2 December 2022 until the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

3. To re-elect the following Directors:

3.1 MrJacob O Pang Su Yin retiring pursuant to Clause No. 100 of the Company’s Constitution and Resolution 2
being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

3.2 Mr Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang retiring pursuant to Clause No. 100 of the Company’s Resolution 3
Constitution and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

4. To re-appoint Messrs Crowe Malaysia PLT as Auditors of the Company until the conclusion of the Resolution 4
next Annual General Meeting and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without modification:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION

5.1 Proposed Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr Jacob O Pang Su Yin Resolution 5

“ THAT subject to passing of Resolution 2, approval be and is hereby given for Mr Jacob O
Pang Su Yin who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for
a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to be retained and to continue to act as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company. ”

5.2 Proposed Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Resolution 6
Thian Siang

“ THAT subject to passing of Resolution 3, approval be and is hereby given for Mr Loh Thian
Sang @ Lo Thian Siang who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to be retained and to continue to
act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company. ”
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont'd.)

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION

Authority to issue shares pursuant to the Companies Act 2016 Resolution 7

“ THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Constitution of the Company
and approvals from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and any other relevant
governmental and/or regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to
the Act, to issue and allot shares in the capital of the Company from time to time at such price and
upon such terms and conditions, for such purposes and to such person or persons whomsoever the
Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit provided always that the aggregate number of
shares issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares
of the Company for the time being.

AND THAT the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and
quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Securities;

AND FURTHER THAT such authority shall commence immediately upon the passing of this
resolution and continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company. ”

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority Resolution 8

“ THAT subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Constitution of the
Company and the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”),
all other applicable laws, rules, regulations, and orders and the approvals of all relevant regulatory
authorities, the Company is hereby authorised to purchase and/or hold such number of ordinary
shares (“Shares”) in the Company as may be determined by the Directors from time to time through
Bursa Securities upon such terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the
interest of the Company, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be purchased and/or held
pursuant to this resolution shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total number of issued shares in
the ordinary share capital of the Company at any point in time and that an amount of the funds not
exceeding the retained earnings of the Company, be utilised for Share Buy-Back;

AND THAT such Shares purchased may be retained as treasury shares and/or distributed as dividends
and/or resold on the market of Bursa Securities and/or be cancelled, as the Directors may deem fit
and expedient in the interest of the Company;

AND THAT such authority hereby given shall take effect immediately and shall continue to be in force
until:

(@ the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company at which time it shall lapse
unless by a resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is renewed; or

(b) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
after that date is required to be held pursuant to Section 340(2) of the Act (but shall not extend
to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act); or

(c) revoked or varied by a resolution passed by the Shareholders in a general meeting,

whichever is the earlier;

AND FURTHER THAT the Directors be hereby authorised to do all such acts and things as may

be required by the relevant authorities (including executing any relevant documents) as they may
consider expedient or necessary to complete and give effect to the aforesaid authorisation. ”
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8.

To transact any other business of the Company of which due notice has been given to the Company.

By Order of the Board

Dorothy Luk Wei Kam (SSM PC No. 202008001484)(MAICSA 7000414)
Ho Ling Ling (SSM PC No. 202008000066)(MAICSA 7012567)
Company Secretaries

Kota Kinabalu, Sabah
Dated: 31 October 2022

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(9)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, participate, speak and vote
instead of him and that a proxy need not be a member of the Company.

For the purpose of determining member’s eligibility to attend this Meeting, only member whose name appears in the
Record of Depositors as at 25 November 2022 shall be entitled to attend this Meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/
or vote on his behalf.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company shall be entitled to appoint not more
than 2 proxies to attend and vote in his stead at the Meeting. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the
proxy. Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by
each proxy, failing which, the appointment shall be invalid.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for
multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which
the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney or if the appointor
is a corporation under the seal, and the person so appointed may attend and vote at this meeting at which the appointor
is entitled to vote.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be left at the Registered Office of the Company at Block G, Lot 3B, Bandar Leila,
90000 Sandakan, Sabah, or received at the electronic address at ir@coastalcontracts.com, at least 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which it is to be used, and in default shall not be treated
as valid.

Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all
resolutions set out in this Notice will be put to a vote by way of a poll.

Explanatory Notes

(a)

Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Agenda 1 is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016 does not require a
formal approval of the shareholders for the Audited Financial Statements. Hence, it will not be put forward for voting.
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Explanatory Notes (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Ordinary Resolutions - Proposed Retention of Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr Jacob O Pang Su Yin and
Mr Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang

In relation to the proposed Resolutions 5 and 6, the Board of Directors has via the Nomination Committee assessed the
independence of Mr Jacob O Pang Su Yin and Mr Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang who have served as Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, and recommended them to
continue to act as Independent Non Executive Directors of the Company based on the following justifications:-

()  They fulfil the criteria of an Independent Director pursuant to the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad;

(i)  With their years of experience in the Company, they are familiar with the Company’s business operations, thus
enabling them to contribute actively and effectively during deliberations or discussions at the Board Meetings;

(i) They have demonstrated their capability as independent directors and provided numerous constructive suggestions
to the Board; and

(iv) Their level of independence and competency have not been impaired with time.

Subject to the passing of the proposed Resolutions 2 and 3, the proposed Resolutions 5 and 6, if passed, will enable Mr
Jacob Pang and Mr Loh to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive Directors until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Company would seek shareholders’ approval for retention of both of them as independent directors who have served
the Company for a cumulative term of more than 9 years via a two-tier voting process in accordance with the Malaysian
Code on Corporate Governance.

Ordinary Resolution - Authority to issue shares pursuant to the Companies Act 2016

The proposed Resolution 7, if passed, shall give power to the Directors to issue ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company up to an aggregate amount not exceeding 10% of the total number of issued shares in the ordinary share
capital of the Company for the time being. This authority unless revoked or varied at a general meeting will expire at the
next Annual General Meeting. This general mandate was not utilised since its approval of renewal by the shareholders on
16 December 2021. The renewal of the general mandate is to facilitate the Company to raise funds expeditiously for the
purpose of funding future investment, working capital and/or acquisition without having to convene a general meeting to
seek shareholders’ approval when such opportunities or needs arise.

Ordinary Resolution - Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority

The proposed Resolution 8, if passed, shall empower the Directors of the Company to buy back and/or to hold the shares
of the Company not exceeding 10% of the total number of issued shares in the ordinary share capital of the Company from
time to time being quoted on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad as may be determined by the Directors of the Company
from time to time through Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad upon such terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit
and expedient in the interests of the Company. Shareholders are directed to refer to the Share Buy-Back Statement dated
31 October 2022 for more information.
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Statement Accompanying Notice Of
Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)

1. Details of the individuals who are standing for re-election or re-appointment as Directors in accordance with Agenda 3
of the Notice of Annual General Meeting are set out on pages 10 to 12 of this Annual Report, whereas the details of their
interest in the securities of the Company are disclosed on pages 148 to 149 of this Annual Report.

2. Details on the authority to issue shares pursuant to the Companies Act 2016 are provided under the Explanatory Notes on
Special Business in the Notice.
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5-Years’ Group Financial Summary

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Financial Results (RM’000)
Revenue 232,699 161,571 211,082 156,329 158,675
Profit/(Loss) before tax 213,703 51,904 (87,722) 29,838 (568,124)
Profit/(Loss) net of tax 183,625 32,620 (105,051) 14,407 (583,054)
Statement of Financial Position (RM’000)
Total assets 2,012,343 1,396,182 1,553,993 1,645,714 1,715,785
Total borrowings 463,287 92,282 276,799 293,938 348,233
Shareholders’ equity 1,354,172 1,103,734 1,085,939 1,176,862 1,162,744
Financial Indicators
Return on equity 14.94% 2.98% (9.29%) 1.23% (39.14%)
Earnings/(Loss) per share (sen) 34.41 6.17 (19.88) 2.73 (110.56)
Net asset per share (sen) 258 211 206 223 220
REVENUE PROFIT/(LOSS) NET OF TAX
(RM’000) (RM’000)
300,000 - 300,000 -
200,000 - 183,625
250,000 -
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(RM’000)
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Coastal Contracts Bhd.

Registration No. 200001015043 (517649-A)

100%
PLEASANT ENGINEERING SDN. BHD.
Registration No. 200401003237 (641740-K)

100%
BONAFILE SHIPBUILDERS & REPAIRS SDN. BHD.
Registration No. 198901006975 (184278-W)

100%
COASTAL TRANSPORT (SANDAKAN) SDN. BHD.
Registration No. 197601002820 (28778-D)

100%
COASTWAY TRANSPORT SDN. BHD.
Registration No. 198201014817 (94581-W)

100%
SERI MODALWAN SDN. BHD.
Registration No. 198301015821 (111213-M)

100%
COASTAL OFFSHORE (LABUAN) PTE. LTD.
(LL02556)

100%
ACE CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(LL07022)

100%
COASTAL OFFSHORE VENTURE PTE. LTD.
(LL10566)

100%
THAUMAS MARINE LTD.
(BC NO. 1397697)

100%
COASTAL INTERNATIONAL MARINE INC.
(BC NO. 1816692)

100%
COASTAL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PTE. LTD.
(201438176M)

(27340)

2 50%
COASTOIL DYNAMIC, S.A. DE C.V.
50%

100%

COASTAL MARINE PTE. LTD.
(200608933M)

i}
-

5%

100%
COASTAL DRILLING PTE. LTD.
(201437197M)

2%
B |
80% (e
100%
COASTAL DYNAMIC PTE. LTD.
(201831904W)
100%

COASTAL SUPREME 1 PTE. LTD.
(201937260K)

100%
COASTAL C | PTE. LTD.
(201942522C)

95%
COASTOIL, S.A. DE C.V.
(66218)

50%

CN ENERGY HOLDINGS
PTE. LTD.

(201631213K)

96%

CN ENERGY SERVICIOS,
S.A.DEC.V.

(20225)

ELITE POINT PTE. LTD.
(202034649E)
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Directors’ Profiles

The Board currently has six members, comprising three Executive Directors (including the Chairman) and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. A brief description of the background of each Director is presented below:

NG CHIN HENG, Male, Aged 73, Malaysian Executive Chairman

Mr Ng Chin Heng was appointed as Executive Chairman to the Board on 8 August 2000.

He is the principal founder of Coastal Group. Soon after completing the Lower Certificate of Education and gaining work
experience in various capacities, Mr Ng Chin Heng started his business endeavour in 1977 trading in animal feed, fertilisers and
raw rubber. Subsequently, he ventured into vessel chartering business in 1982 when he acquired Coastal Transport (Sandakan)
Sdn. Bhd., a tug and barge hire company, which then owned and operated 4 small old tankers. He then acquired the technical
and management skills in tugboat and barge repairs and fabrications. He further learned and improved the technical and
management aspects of shipyard operations by visiting some of the shipyards in Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore and China.

Mr Ng Chin Heng is responsible for leadership of the Board of the Company, ensuring its effectiveness and setting its agenda.
He meets with shareholders to ensure that there is sufficient and effective communication to understand shareholders’ issues
and concerns. He is responsible for executing the strategy agreed by the Board and developing objectives through leadership
of the senior executive team. He also ensures that the Group’s risks are adequately addressed and appropriate internal controls
are in place.

Mr Ng Chin Heng attended all five Board meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

As at 23 September 2022, Mr Ng Chin Heng has direct interests of 5.64% and indirect interests of 41.17% by virtue of lvory
Asia Sdn Bhd’s, his wife’s and children’s shareholdings in Coastal Contracts Bhd. He is the brother of Mr Ng Chin Shin and Mr
Ng Chin Keuan, both the Directors of the Company, and the husband of Madam Pang Fong Thau, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Save as disclosed on pages 121 and 122 of the Annual Report on related party transactions, he has no conflict
of interest with the Company.

NG CHIN SHIN, Male, Aged 63, Malaysian Executive Director

Mr Ng Chin Shin was appointed as Executive Director to the Board on 8 August 2000.

He is one of the co-founders of Coastal Group. Shortly after completing the Lower Certificate of Education, he went on to
become a mechanic and welder in 1975 and subsequently a mechanic and construction supervisor. He gained his experience in
the shipbuilding industry when he worked for a shipbuilding contractor between 1980 and 1985. With his valuable knowledge,
he was invited to join the Group in 1986 and has been involved in the Group for 35 years. He has been instrumental in shaping
and laying the foundations for the Group’s products and workmanship quality in vessel manufacturing and repair works. His
vast experience and in-depth knowledge in the vessel manufacturing and repair activities will continue to benefit the Group.

Mr Ng Chin Shin attended all five Board meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.
As at 23 September 2022, Mr Ng Chin Shin has direct interests of 4.53% in Coastal Contracts Bhd. He is the brother-in-law
of Madam Pang Fong Thau, a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is the brother of Mr Ng Chin Heng and Mr Ng Chin

Keuan, Directors of the Company. Mr Ng Chin Heng is also a substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed on
pages 121 and 122 of the Annual Report on related party transactions, he has no conflict of interest with the Company.

10
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NG CHIN KEUAN, Male, Aged 63, Malaysian Executive Director

Mr Ng Chin Keuan was appointed as Executive Director to the Board on 8 August 2000.

He is one of the co-founders of Coastal Group. He has a Lower Certificate of Education. He is involved in the affairs of the
Group since its early years in 1980s and thus well acquainted with the Group’s operations. He gained the knowledge and skills
of marine engineering through hands-on management and practical experience. He is principally responsible in supervising the
day-to-day operations of the shipyards and also for fleet maintenance and parts procurement. Prior to joining the Group, he
was in the trading business with Mr Ng Chin Heng.

Mr Ng Chin Keuan attended all five Board meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

As at 23 September 2022, Mr Ng Chin Keuan has direct interests of 4.50% and a slight indirect interests by virtue of his wife’s
shareholdings in Coastal Contracts Bhd. He is the brother-in-law of Madam Pang Fong Thau, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is the brother of Mr Ng Chin Heng and Mr Ng Chin Shin, Directors of the Company. Mr Ng Chin Heng is also
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed on pages 121 and 122 of the Annual Report on related party
transactions, he has no conflict of interest with the Company.

JACOB O PANG SU YIN, Male, Aged 55, Malaysian Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Jacob O Pang Su Yin was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director to the Board on 1 August 2013. He serves as
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

He completed his tertiary education with a Degree in Commerce in 1989 from the James Cook University of North Queensland.
He started his career as an Audit Trainee and subsequently gained his practical experience in a firm of chartered accountants.
He is a Principal at a firm providing audit, tax and consulting services for public and private companies. He is a Fellow of CPA
Australia, and member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and The Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia.

Mr Jacob O Pang Su Yin attended all five Board meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

As at 23 September 2022, Mr Jacob O Pang Su Yin does not have any direct or indirect interest in shares in Coastal Contracts
Bhd.

LOH THIAN SANG @ LO THIAN SIANG, Male, Aged 77, Malaysian Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director to the Board on 2 December
2002 and serves as a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

He has over 36 years of experience in marine administration and operation. He joined the Marine Department in 1964 as
signalman a year after leaving secondary school and during his tenure in the organisation advanced himself as a Senior
Boarding Officer in 1998. His last post with the Marine Department before retirement was as the acting Assistant Marine Officer
from 1997 to 2000.

Mr Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang attended all five Board meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

As at 23 September 2022, Mr Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang does not have any direct or indirect interest in shares in Coastal
Contracts Bhd.

11
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TUAN HJ. IR INTIZAM BIN AYUB, Male, Aged 69, Malaysian Independent Non-Executive Director

Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director to the Board on 7 October 2014 and
serves as a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

He obtained his Indonesian Merchant Marine Academy BSc Marine Engineering and holding 1st Class and 2nd Class Marine
Engineer Foreign Going License issued by Department of Sea Communication. He started his career with Malaysian International
Shipping Corp Bhd (MISC) as a 4th Engineer to Foreign Going Chief Engineer from year 1975 to 1984. He then joined Petronas
Marine Dept E & P as a Marine Engineer from 1984 to 1988. In the same year, he was promoted to Senior Marine Engineer for
Field Development Project of Petronas Carigali Sdn. Bhd. (“PCSB”) and this position was held until 1991. Subsequently he
was appointed as the Manager Ship Vetting of Petronas Maritime Services Sdn. Bhd. who was in charge of Marine Support
Vessel Selection and advisor for various FSO/FPSO project development (1991-1999). He later joined Carigali Triton Operation
Company (“CTOC”) as a Senior Resident Engineer, whom duties were developing Technical Specification and supervising
a new built FSO Puteri Dulang (1999-2002). He then worked within the Head of Consultancy Section of Petronas Maritime
Services Sdn. Bhd. as a Manager Marine Consultancy who was monitoring the development of Marine Floater for Petronas for
a period of 2 years (2002-2004) prior to joining Newfield (PCSB) as Senior Resident Engineer for the conversion of FSO (2004-
2007). He then joined Petronas Carigali Vietnam in 2007 and held the position of Head of FPSO Project Ruby ‘B’ Field for 2
years. In 2008, he retired from Petronas and subsequent to his retirement, he reentered the workforce in July 2008 and worked
with Petronas Carigali, Pertamina, PetroVietnam Operating Co Sdn. Bhd. as a Senior Marine Engineer, overseeing a MOPU
Development Project. In August 2012, he was working with BC Petroleum Sdn. Bhd. As a Senior Manager who was in charge
of Delivery of Early Production Vessel for Marginal Field.

Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub attended all five Board meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

As at 23 September 2022, Tuan Hij. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub does not have any direct or indirect interest in shares of Coastal
Contracts Bhd.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors have:

any directorship in public companies and listed issuers;

any family relationship with any Directors and/or major shareholders of the Company, unless disclosed;
any conflict of interest with the Company;

any conviction for offences within the past 5 years other than traffic offences (if any); and

any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

SUBCNE S ISR
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Key Senior Management

PANG FONG THAU

62 years of age, Malaysian, Female

She was first appointed as Director of a subsidiary of the Company on 1 December 1982 and is one of the co-founders of
Coastal Group. Currently, she also sits on the board of several subsidiaries of Coastal Group. She holds a Lower Certificate of
Education. Currently, she is the Head of Treasury, Administration and Human Resource division of the Group. Since the early
formative years, she has been involved in the managerial level of Coastal Group, handling the accounting, administrative and
organisation aspects of the business operations.

She is the wife of Mr Ng Chin Heng and the sister-in-law of Mr Ng Chin Shin and Mr Ng Chin Keuan who are members of the
Board of the Company. Mr Ng Chin Heng is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

NG CHIN KOK

65 years of age, Malaysian, Male

He was first appointed as Director of a subsidiary of the Company on 1 December 1982 and is one of the co-founders of
Coastal Group. Currently, he also sits on the board of several subsidiaries of Coastal Group. He has a Higher School Certificate.
Currently, he is involved in the business development of the Group. Since the formation of Coastal Group, he has been influential
in expanding the Group’s fleet chartering and transportation operations. His vast hands-on operational experience includes
maritime regulations, procedures and requirements.

He is the brother of Mr Ng Chin Heng, Mr Ng Chin Shin and Mr Ng Chin Keuan who are members of the Board of the Company.
Mr Ng Chin Heng is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

ALICE NG

39 years of age, Malaysian, Female

She was first appointed as Director of a subsidiary of the Company on 29 September 2012. Currently, she also sits on the board
of several subsidiaries of Coastal Group. She graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce - double major from Curtin University,
Perth in 2005 and is a member of the Certified Practising Accountants, Australia and the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
She joined Coastal as Accounts & Finance Executive in 2006. Currently, she is the Head of Commercial and Legal division of
the Group. Her working experience includes the field of finance, auditing and tax.

She is the daughter of Mr Ng Chin Heng and the niece of Mr Ng Chin Shin and Mr Ng Chin Keuan who are members of the
Board of the Company. Mr Ng Chin Heng is a substantial shareholder of the Company. She is also the daughter of Madam Pang
Fong Thau, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

LIOW MING YEW

40 years of age, Malaysian, Male

He was first appointed as Director of a subsidiary of the Company on 29 September 2012. Currently, he also sits on the board
of several subsidiaries of Coastal Group. He graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce — major in Accounting from University
of Western Australia, Perth in 2004. He joined Coastal in 2005 as Operations cum Safety Supervisor. Currently, he is the Head
of Marketing and Commercial division of the Group. He has gained extensive experience in marketing of the Group’s vessels
throughout his years in Coastal.
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Key Senior Management (cont’d.)

LAU JOO TING

46 years of age, Malaysian, Male

He was first appointed as Director of a subsidiary of the Company on 20 January 2015. Currently, he also sits on the board of
several subsidiaries of Coastal Group. He graduated with a Bachelor of Civil Engineering from University of Canterbury, New
Zealand in 2000. He joined Coastal in 2006 as a Civil Engineer. He is also a key person in Marketing division of the Group. His
working experience includes the field of civil engineering and also marketing of vessels.

He is the son-in-law of Mr Ng Chin Heng who is a member of the Board of the Company and a substantial shareholder of the
Company and also the son-in-law of Madam Pang Fong Thau, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

NG SAN CHEN

40 years of age, Malaysian, Male

He was appointed as Director of a subsidiary of the Company on 20 April 2007. Upon graduating from Australia with a Diploma
in Business Management, he joined Coastal as Shipbuilding Trainee on 21 May 2003 and has since been actively involved in
the shipbuilding’s technical aspects and quality inspection. With over nineteen (19) years of hands-on experience, he is one of
the key person in the Shipbuilding division of the Group.

He is the son of Mr Ng Chin Heng and the nephew of Mr Ng Chin Shin and Mr Ng Chin Keuan who are members of the Board
of the Company. Mr Ng Chin Heng is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also the son of Madam Pang Fong Thau,
a substantial shareholder of the Company.

KONG WEI KET

46 years of age, Malaysian, Male

He had joined the Company as Chief Financial Officer cum Group Accountant on 1 April 2012. He started his career as an
Audit Assistant with KPMG Sandakan on 16 July 1996. Prior to joining the Company, he was heading KPMG Tawau Audit
& Assurance Department. He has over 15 years of experience in audit and assurance services with KPMG. He is a Fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and also a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Currently, he is overseeing the financial management function and financial reporting function of the Group.

NG SAN YANG

29 years of age, Malaysian, Male

He was first appointed as Director of a subsidiary of the Company on 2 September 2022. He graduated with a Diploma of
Mechanical Engineering from Curtin University Australia in 2016 and joined the Company in 2017 as an operations assistant. He
has since been actively involved in the commercial and operations of the Company. He is also a key person in the Commercial
division of the Group.

He is the son of Mr Ng Chin Heng and the nephew of Mr Ng Chin Shin and Mr Ng Chin Keuan who are members of the Board
of the Company. Mr Ng Chin Heng is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also the son of Madam Pang Fong Thau,
a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Save as disclosed, none of the Key Senior Management have:

any directorship in public companies and listed issuers;

any family relationship with any Directors and/or major shareholders of the Company, unless disclosed;
any conflict of interest with the Company;

any conviction for offences within the past 5 years other than traffic offences (if any); and

any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

O N =
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

As we arrive towards the tail end of the pandemic, the global economy
3 5 y and global oil demand are on their way to a recovery. However, the global
; = | economy remains challenging due to the impact of intensifying geopolitical
— tensions, China’s Zero-Covid policy prompted lockdowns implementation,
v supply chain disruptions and growing inflationary pressures globally. All

these headwinds have overshadowed the strong recovery of global oil
demand. Nevertheless, underinvestment by oil majors in the last decade
has resulted in a tight supply condition worldwide, this will provide a strong
support to the recovery of the industry and continue to benefit industry
players with strong balance sheet.

FY2022 symbolised an excellent year of performance for Coastal Contracts
Bhd and its subsidiaries (“Coastal Group”). During this financial year, Coastal
Group has expanded its footprint in the Mexican onshore gas processing
sector through its second onshore gas conditioning plant project, the EMC
Papan Plant. With the next chapter in this achievement unfolds, the Group
is well-positioned for its next phase of growth.

Ng Chin Heng
Executive Chairman

In December 2021, amid recovery of the industry the Group’s joint venture company, Coastoil Dynamic S.A. de C.V. secured a
mega contract win to construct and operate the EMC Papan Plant project in Mexico worth RM4.5 billion, made possible by our
prudent business strategy and conservative financial management policy which provides.

In addition, our existing key profit contributors such as the Jack-up Gas Compression Service Unit (“JUGCSU”), Perdiz onshore
gas conditioning plant and liftboat chartering business have continued to generate robust recurring earnings and cashflow for
the Group.

In this regard, | am pleased to present the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of Coastal Group for the financial
year ended 30 June 2022 (“FY2022").

OPERATION HIGHTLIGHTS
Gas Processing Division

The long-term charter of JUGCSU, namely AGOSTO 12 is now in its sixth year since achieving its first gas in August 2016.
JUGCSU has been producing and supplying compressed gas smoothly to PEMEX since then.

Through our joint venture company, our first onshore gas conditioning plant, the Perdiz Plant is now in its second year since the
first gas production was achieved in July 2021. Since then, the plant has commenced to process gas extracted from the Ixachi
field, one of Mexico’s largest onshore discoveries. Currently, the plant operates at optimal production capacity.

Our EMC Papan Plant, being the second plant to handle gas extracted from the Ixachi field, is currently under construction.
Construction commenced during the third quarter of FY2022. The Plant is expected to achieve its first gas by the second
quarter of FY2023. Upon commencement of commercial operation, it will become one of the largest contributors to the Group’s
bottom line for the next ten years.

Vessel Chartering Division
The liftboat chartering business has contributed significantly to the division since the acquisition of the business was completed
in second half of FY2021. During FY2022, the Group successfully secured a long term charter contract extension with higher

rate amid strong recovery of upstream activities in the Middle East. The liftboat had achieved fantastic utilisation rate during the
year, driven by promising activities in the region.
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Chairman’s Statement (cont'd.)

OPERATION HIGHTLIGHTS (Cont’d)
Vessel Chartering Division (Cont’d)

Besides that, the growing investments in offshore exploration and production to meet the increasing energy demand is expected
to drive the demand for Offshore Support Vessels (“OSV”) considerably and foster the strong recovery of the OSV market, both
for the demand and charter rate. In line with the recovery, the Group successfully disposed one of its high-end OSVs at a
sizeable gain and secured several short term charter contracts during FY2022. The Group is in a good position to monetize its
OSV fleet either via disposal or chartering jobs.

Shipbuilding and Ship Repair Division

The division recorded a minimal revenue in FY2022 which was comparable with FY2021. The underperformance of division’s
revenue was mainly due to lesser ship repairing contract works and there was no delivery of new-built vessels in FY2022.

The Group will strive to minimize the fixed overheads of its shipyards located in Sabah while waiting for local opportunities
which anticipated to be emerged in the short to medium terms, driven by good prospect of the sector recovery locally.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Revenue and Profitability

On the whole, the Group achieved a greater revenue of RM232.7 million in FY2022, which was increased by RM71.1 million, as
compared to RM161.6 million reported in FY2021.

The Gas Processing Division’s revenue recorded RM166.7 million in FY2022, RM25.0 million higher than revenue for FY2021 of
RM141.7 million. The improvement in revenue was mainly attributed to the income earned from onshore gas conditioning plant
project for first half of FY2022.

In the meantime, the Vessel Chartering Division contributed RM64.1 million to the total Group revenue in FY2022, with a sharp
increase of RM47.2 million, from RM16.9 million recorded in FY2021. The increase in revenue was mainly due to full-year
revenue contribution from the liftboat chartering business throughout FY2022.

The revenue generated from the Shipbuilding and Ship Repair Division for FY2022 decreased slightly by RM1.1 million to RM1.9
million from RM3.0 million in FY2021. The division’s revenue for both FY2022 and FY2021 were solely generated from ship
repairing contract works.

The Group registered net profit attributable to shareholders of RM180.2 million and RM32.4 million in FY2022 and FY2021
respectively. The substantial increase of RM147.8 million was mainly due to the interest income earned from loans granted to a
joint venture and profit shared from the joint venture as well as gain on disposal of an OSV during FY2022.

Consequently, basic earnings per share for FY2022 increased significantly to 34.41 sen compared to 6.17 sen per share in
FY2021.

Financial Position

Coastal Group continues to maintain a healthy financial position with a solid shareholders’ equity, which has increased to
RM1.4 billion in FY2022 from RM1.1 billion in FY2021.

In FY2022, total borrowings increased significantly to RM463.3 million by RM371.0 million from RM92.3 million in FY2021
mainly due to borrowings secured for the construction funding requirement of both onshore gas conditioning plant projects.

On the other hand, liquidity reserves of the Group for FY2022 decreased slightly to RM238.7 million from RM274.7 million in
FY2021, as we have deployed part of our reserves for lending to a joint venture in Mexico. The Group’s liquidity reserve for
FY2022 comprises of short-term investments of RM15.6 million and cash and bank balances of RM223.1 million.

Overall, our financial position remains healthy with a low gearing ratio of 0.34 times and 0.08 times for FY2022 and FY2021
respectively. The low gearing ratio allows us ample room to pursue growth opportunities in the near future.
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PROSPECTS AND GROWTH STRATEGIES

The world is in the midst of experiencing energy shortage due to the strong demand brought about by a recovery in a post
pandemic era as well as underinvestment in the industry, and together with the effects of the ongoing geopolitical tension, has
led to soaring energy prices, which in turn has resulted in inflation turning into an imminent global issue. The energy transition
is widely viewed as a crucial enabler of sustainable developments and climate resilience to promote a cleaner global energy
system. However, shortage and slower than expected growth of green energy infrastructures is one of the biggest hurdles in
achieving the energy transition goal by year 2050. We believe natural gas, generally perceived as cleaner energy than other
fossil fuels, would play an important role during the interim phase of the energy transition.

Following the success of the Perdiz Plant and EMC Papan Plant, our joint venture company has emerged as a PEMEX'’s
contractor with robust project execution capabilities, which will position us as a front runner for the upcoming onshore gas
related projects. Through the synergistic relationship with our Mexican partner, the Group aspires to embark on more energy
infrastructure projects in future. In line with our sustainability goal and the global climate goal, Coastal Group as an energy
infrastructure player, will strive to support and contribute as much as we can in transforming the world into a greener planet.

As stated, the oil and gas sector has been suffering from underinvestment in exploration and production over the years,
exacerbated by the disruptions of the pandemic and Russia-Ukraine war. The rapid increase in post-pandemic energy demand
following the growing economy activities will further tighten the oil supply. In order to address the imminent global energy
security issue, the oil and gas exploration and production activities have been increasing at a rapid pace creating a potential
for an increase in demand for OSVs. Management is expecting our Vessel Chartering Division to benefit over the coming years.

In line with our short to medium term growth strategies, we will continue to pursue new business opportunities, mainly within
natural gas related infrastructures such as gas conditioning, gas storage and gas transportation which will provide the Group
with sustainable recurring income stream. This will further strengthen our financial position and prepare us for a leap to our next
transformation phase into a greener energy infrastructure provider.

APPRECIATION TO STAKEHOLDERS

| am proud to announce the recognition
in September 2022, by the members
of The Edge Malaysia Centurion Club
in awarding the Coastal Group the
“Highest Returns to Shareholders
over Three Years” award in the energy

CENTURIONCZ.

industry category.

| would like to take this opportunity
to thank my fellow Board members,
management, and all employees for
their invaluable dedication, commitment
and ongoing support in FY2022.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, |
record my appreciation for the steadfast
support of our business partners,
bankers, customers and suppliers.

Finally, | extend my gratitude to our
shareholders  for your continued
confidence and support. We will
continue to reinvent ourselves in today’s
fast-changing world and continue to
create sustainable growth in shareholder
value.

20—

HIGHEST RETURNS TO SHAREHOLDERS OVER THREE YEARS

COASTAL CONTRACTS BHD
s © @
V.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Coastal Group is a global integrated energy infrastructure and marine services and solutions provider. Its revenues are primarily
derived from onshore and offshore gas processing, vessel chartering, shipbuilding and sales of Offshore Support Vessels
(“OSV”) and marine transportation vessels, as well as ship repair and maintenance services. Coastal Group serves a diverse
clientele worldwide, mainly comprises of national and independent oil companies, vessel buyers and charterers around the
globe.

The Group operates in three main business divisions:

° Gas Processing;
*  Vessel Chartering; and
* Shipbuilding and Ship Repair

Jack-Up Gas Compression Service Unit (“JUGCSU”) is the largest contributor to the Group under the Gas Processing Division.
In the first quarter of 2014, the Group successfully secured a USD372 million contract for the fabrication and 12-year charter
of the JUGCSU to the national oil company of Mexico. The JUGCSU has the ability to compress sour gas, for injection into
the reservoir the high content of associated gas to oil, in order to maintain reservoir pressure and maximise the exploitation of
hydrocarbons. The JUGCSU named AGOSTO 12 has marked its sixth year anniversary since Commercial Operation Date was
achieved in August 2016.

Apart from the above, the Group has ventured into the onshore gas processing business via its joint venture company, Coastoil
Dynamic S.A. de C.V., a company incorporated in Mexico, in the previous financial year. The first project of the joint venture
company, the Perdiz Plant, is an onshore gas conditioning plant with gas sweetening capacity of 180 mmscfd. During the
current financial year, the joint venture company secured its second project, the EMC Papan Plant capable of providing gas
sweetening, dehydration, dew point control and extraction of liquefied petroleum gas services up to 300 mmscfd. Construction
of the Plant commenced in January 2022. Both the Perdiz and Papan Plants are responsible to handle associated gas extracted
from the Ixachi Field, one of the largest onshore oil fields discovered in Mexico.

Through its Vessel Chartering Division, the Group offers a wide range of solutions to its customers. The Group successfully
acquired a jack-up liftboat, Teras Conquest 7 (“TC7”) jointly with its Singaporean strategic business partner in 2021. With the
acquisition, the liftboat chartering business has emerged as another key revenue and profit contributor to the Group under the
Vessel Chartering Division.

The Shipbuilding and Ship Repair Division is made up of two key operations, one being the fabrication and sale of OSVs and
marine transportation vessels, ranging from subsea support vessels, subsea maintenance vessels, platform support vessels,
utility support vessels, anchor handling tug supply vessels and accommodation work barges, to oil barges, dumb barges,
harbour tugs, landing crafts and tug boats. The other area of operation is in Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul services such
as steel hull maintenance, electrical works, engines and generators overhaul, and modification works of various scales.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Gas Processing Division — Overall Financial Performance:

During the financial year (“FY2022”), the Group has identified a new reportable operating segment, namely Gas Processing
Division. The new division comprises of onshore gas conditioning projects and chartering of JUGCSU. The financial performance
of the JUGCSU chartering business was reported under Vessel Chartering Division in the previous financial year (“FY2021”).
Following the change in the composition of the reportable segments, the Group has restated the corresponding segment
information for FY2021.

The Gas Processing Division reported a higher revenue of RM166.7 million in FY2022, with an increase of RM25.0 million, as
compared to RM141.7 million recorded in FY2021. The increase in revenue was principally due to the contribution from the
Perdiz onshore gas sweetening plant in the first half of FY2022. The profit before tax for this division has significantly increased
to RM183.7 million in FY2022 as compared to RM98.5 million reported in FY2021. The improvement in profit before tax was
principally due to profit shared from the newly established joint venture for onshore gas processing plant projects as well as
interest income earned from loans granted to the joint venture in FY2022.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Cont’d)
Vessel Chartering Division- Overall Financial Performance:

The financial performance of JUGCSU chartering business was reported under Vessel Chartering Division in FY2021 and
reclassified to Gas Processing Division in FY2022. Following the change in the composition of the reportable segments, the
Group has restated the corresponding segment information for FY2021.

The Vessel Chartering Division’s revenue increased by 279.3%, from RM16.9 million in FY2021 to RM64.1 million in FY2022.
The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the full-year revenue contribution from the liftboat chartering business in
FY2022. Furthermore, the Group successfully secured several vessel charter contracts during FY2022. In terms of profitability,
this division’s profit before tax for FY2022 was RM29.8 million, in contrast to the loss before tax of RM14.0 million reported in
FY2021, mainly driven by strong profitability for the liftboat chartering business and lucrative gain on disposal of an OSV.

Shipbuilding and Ship Repair Division — Overall Financial Performance:

The revenue for Shipbuilding and Ship Repair Division decreased by RM1.1 million to RM1.9 million in FY2022 from RM3.0
million in FY2021. The division’s revenue was mainly generated from ship repairing contract works. This division recorded a
profit before tax of RM0.2 million for FY2022, an increase by RM32.8 million as contrasted to loss before tax of RM32.6 million
recorded in FY2021. The improvement was mainly attributed to the gain on forex exchange as a result of depreciation of Ringgit
Malaysia against USD during FY2022.

Overview of Key Performance Indicators for the Group:

Key Performance Indicators FYE 30.06.2022 FYE 30.06.2021
Gross profit margin 37.85% 30.96%
Net profit margin 78.91% 20.19%
Gearing ratio 0.34 times 0.08 times
Current ratio 1.99 times 2.48 times
Quick ratio 1.94 times 1.98 times
Inventories turnover 183 days 424 days
Debtors turnover 320 days 335 days
Creditors turnover 348 days 442 days

Gross profit margin and net profit margin

The Group recorded a gross profit margin of 37.85% in FY2022 as compared to gross profit margin of 30.96% in FY2021. The
improvement in gross profit margin is primarily due to higher profit contribution from both Vessel Chartering Division and Gas
Processing Division during the year. In terms of net margin, the net profit margin of the Group was increased significantly to
78.91% in FY2022 as compared to 20.19% recorded in FY2021 is mainly attributable to profit shared from the newly established
joint venture for onshore gas processing plant projects, interest income earned from loans granted to the joint venture as well
as lucrative gain on disposal of an OSV.

Gearing ratio

As at end of FY2022, the Group maintained a higher gearing ratio of 0.34 as compared to 0.08 in FY2021. This was mostly due
to the borrowings secured for both onshore gas conditioning plant projects during FY2022. The Group’s gearing ratio remains
healthy and at a manageable level enabling the Group to have room for more borrowings to fund its capital commitment of
current project, as well as new projects in future.

Current ratio and quick ratio
The current ratio of the Group decreased to 1.99 times in FY2022 from 2.48 times recorded in FY2021. Meanwhile, the Group
maintained a lower quick ratio of 1.94 times in FY2022, which has slightly reduced from 1.98 times reported in FY2021. The

decrease in liquidity position was mainly attributable to borrowings secured for the onshore gas conditioning plant projects
during FY2022.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Cont’d)
Overview of Key Performance Indicators for the Group: (Cont’d)
Inventories turnover

The Group’s inventories turnover declined from 424 days in FY2021 to 183 days in FY2022 due to reclassification of a vessel
inventory to property, plant and equipment because this vessel was deployed for chartering business during FY2022.

Debtors turnover

The debtors turnover decreased to 320 days in FY2022 from 335 days in FY2021 primarily due to better collections from our
Vessel Chartering Division during FY2022.

Creditors turnover

The creditors turnover declined from 442 days in FY2021 to 348 days in FY2022 mainly due to prompt payments were made
to suppliers during the financial year.

Capital Expenditure Requirement:

FYE 30.06.2022 FYE 30.06.2021

Capital commitment RM159,664,805 RM38,857,870

The capital commitment as of end of FY2022 was mainly for the construction of the second onshore gas conditioning plant in
Mexico through a joint venture company of the Group.

Given the uncertainties on global economic growth, Coastal Group would be more cautious in committing and spending its
capital expenditure budget.

Known Trends and Events in the Oil and Gas Sector

The outlook for global oil and gas market has improved since the first half of FY2022. The global oil demand has been on the
pace of recovery with no further worsening by the impacts of Omicron variant. The upward trend of the global oil price has been
supported by a gradual strengthening of oil demand as the mass Covid-19 vaccination campaigns and the concerted effort
of OPEC+ members in the stabilization of the global oil market. In the second half of FY2022, the rising geopolitical tensions
between Russia and Ukraine has caused the global oil price to climb over USD100 per barrel as the heightening concern over
supply chain disruptions. With the imposition of the sanctions against Russia and counter-sanctions by Russia, the global oil
price skyrocketed to more than USD120 per barrel.

Moving forward the oil price is likely to remain volatile, which not only hinges on oil demand and supply but also other factors,
including the geopolitical tensions between Russia and the West, Zero-Covid policy implementation in China and energy
transition. Further, the pandemic induced global inflation issue has worsened as we see a sharper than expected tightening of
monetary policies in advanced economies to rein in inflation. In order to curb the inflation, a deeper than expected recession
may be the outcome.

The world is currently grippled with an energy crunch, caused mainly due to the strong demand recovery post pandemic, and
the supply chain being significantly affected by the ongoing geopolitical conflicts and the underinvestment of new projects in
oil and gas sector in last decade as well as a dearth of alternative energy sources. Thus, the Management believes the global
oil and gas market outlook remains favourable for the medium term.
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REVIEW OF OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The JUGCSU marked its sixth year anniversary since achieving its first gas production in August 2016. The JUGCSU has been
operating smoothly during FY2022. The unit has contributed substantially to the earnings of the Gas Processing Division for
FY2022.

In addition, both the Perdiz and Papan Plants have emerged as significant earnings contributors to the Group via share of
profits in joint venture during FY2022. The Perdiz Plant has been operating smoothly and achieved maximum daily processing
volume since November 2021. On the other hand, construction of Papan Plant is on-going and is expected to be completed
by second quarter of FY2023.

With regards to the Vessel Chartering Division, the Group’s newly acquired liftboat, known as TC7, has been operating smoothly
and achieved optimum utilisation during the financial year under review. In the meantime, the Group had successfully secured
a contract extension for TC7 with a two-years firm contract period and two annual extension options. Further, the Group has
disposed one of its high-end OSVs which is consistent with its exit strategy for OSV business. During the year, the Group
successfully secured few vessel charter contracts, utilisation of the Group’s vessel fleet is slightly better than last year amid
recovery of upstream activities.

In FY2022, our Shipbuilding and Ship Repair Division has underperformed with lower revenue contribution contributed by
lesser ship repairing contract works. In addition, there was no delivery of new-built vessels in FY2022.

SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS RISK

Management has viewed that our significant business risk of the Group is the market risk. Following more than two years of the
Covid-19 pandemic mode, the oil and gas market is on its way to a recovery from the impacts of the pandemic. Unfortunately,
the intensifying geopolitical tensions between Russia and Ukraine and its effects on commodity market, supply chain and
inflation have exacerbated the global recession risk. In addition, the implementation of the strict Covid-19 restrictions in China
amid its Zero-Covid policy threaten to suppress China’s growth and continuously to set the global economy on a course of
slower growth. The global economy is increasingly facing an uncertain outlook due to the headwinds to global growth are
expected to increase in the coming years. Such downside scenario could significantly affect oil price and the industry.

In order to mitigate this significant risk, Management will continue with its prudent cash management strategy to build up its war
chest via monetisation of the Group’s OSV fleet as a buffer to weather the challenging times. In the meantime, Coastal Group
will continue to maintain its prudent business strategy to pursue business expansion opportunities and growth objectives by
selecting recession-proof projects with solid earnings visibility, such as our gas conditioning plant projects.

PROSPECTS

While the war-induced commodity price increases and lingering supply-demand imbalances have led to the rising global
inflation across countries, and further extended the slowdown in global economy, Coastal Group remains cautious to maintain
its business operations and financial management in the short to medium term. With its history of having successfully navigated
through many challenges and economic crisis in the past decades, the Group is well poised to weather the current storm and
volatility.
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Sustainability Statement

Coastal Contracts Bhd. (“Coastal”) is pleased to present its Sustainability Statement which covers its corporate office,
shipyards and business operations. This report has been prepared in accordance with the Main Market Listing Requirements
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”). The contents of this statement and the identified material economic,
environmental and social risks were identified by referring to the Sustainability Reporting Guide issued by Bursa Malaysia.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors oversees the development of the sustainability performance of the organisation. The senior management
and Heads of divisions will give recommendations and convey the material matters identified to the Board. The Board is kept
informed and regularly updated on the progress of sustainability matters and any issues arising therefrom.

KEY SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS

The materiality assessment was conducted by taking into consideration the view and responses from the Group’s stakeholders
on significant economic, environment and social risks and opportunities which are crucial for the success and continued growth
of the Group. The key sustainability matters identified are discussed below.

ECONOMIC
Procurement

As a key consideration to conducting a sustainable business, a proper management of the Group’s procurement practice is
required. In order to support domestic economy, the Group’s local Purchasing team sources significant portion of products
and services for its business from the local domestic suppliers. Should the local domestic suppliers be unable to provide such
products or services, the team shall then source from international suppliers.

The Group’s local shipyards maintain an appropriate Procurement Policy to ensure that the procured products and services
are fit for purpose and represent value for money. The Procurement Policy ensures a standard of ethical conducts with fair
assessment of quotations or proposals submitted by vendors.

Whistleblowing Policies and Procedures

Coastal maintains a Whistleblowing Policies and Procedures which provide a platform for all employees to disclose any
improper conduct which affect the Group. Any Director, officer or employee of the Group can report any improper conduct by
writing to the Audit Committee Chairman, Mr. Jacob O Pang Su Yin at jacob.pang@coastalcontracts.com.

Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy

Coastal has established an Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy (“ABC Policy”) to set out the Group’s zero-tolerance approach
against all forms of corruption and bribery. The Group is committed to conducting its business activities in an ethical and

transparent manner, as well as to acting professionally and integrity in all business dealings and relationships.

Any Director, officer or employee of the Group who has concern about suspected contravention of the ABC Policy, is encouraged
to report the violations via the procedure as provided under the Group’s Whistleblowing Policies and Procedures.

Code of Conduct
The Group maintains a Code of Conduct for all its employees intended to preserve business integrity and accountability. The
Code of Conduct lists out the Group’s expectations of its employees, outlining acceptable behavior throughout the organisation

during the tenure of their employment. To ensure that the entire workforce is aware of this code, all new employees are
presented with the Employees Handbook on joining the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Sustainable Business Operations

Gas Processing Division
Jack-Up Gas Compression Service Unit

The Jack-Up Gas Compression Service Unit (“JUGCSU?”) is operated at the Cantarell field, Gulf of Mexico, which is one of the
largest oil fields in the world. JUGCSU uses state-of-the-art turbo compressors to compress sour natural gas, which is either
transported to other processing centres or re-injected into mature fields for enhancement in oil recovery. The compressed gas
is commercialised as an alternative useful energy source instead of the traditional method of flaring from which the noxious
emissions contribute to environmental pollution.

In addition, the design of the gas compressors is optimised in order to achieve the most desirable energy efficient performance
for daily compression needs. The Group frequently assesses the need to change components and parts of the equipment
during the operation regime in order to reduce the carbon released to the environment.

Onshore Gas Conditioning Plants

As the world prepares and transitions itself towards Net Zero Carbon goal by 2050, natural gas being the cleanest burning fossil
fuel available and more environmentally friendly shall play an important role during the energy transition period.

With the recent significant discovery of gas at the Ixachi field at Veracruz, Mexico, associated gas extracted with its high content
of hydrogen sulfide, water and heavy hydrocarbons, would need to undergo a sweetening process in order to be ready for the
market. Hence the erection and operation, on a joint venture basis, the Group’s first onshore gas conditioning plant, known as
the Perdiz Plant. Since the plant achieved its Commercial Operation Date (“COD”) in FY2021 until 30 June 2022, approximately
57,000 mmscf of wet sour gas from the Ixachi field which otherwise would have been flared, have been processed, resulting
in energy savings of approximately 59,280,000 mmbtu. In addition, the reduction in excess gas flaring has also reduced CO2
emissions at the Ixachi field.

At present the joint venture company is constructing its second onshore gas conditioning plant project known as Papan
Plant for the Ixachi field. This is a gas conditioning plant with larger capacity compared to Perdiz with extra gas processing
features included production of sweetened gas, dehydration, dew point control and recovery of liquefied petroleum gas and
oil condensate. The construction of Papan Plant is expected to be completed soon and is on track to achieve its COD. Both
Papan Plant and Perdiz Plant would play a strategic importance role for Ixachi field in the aspects of energy savings and CO2
reduction, as well as supply sustainable, affordable and accessible energy to everyone in Mexico.

Vessel Chartering Division
Offshore Vessels

International Maritime Organization (IMO) is a global standard-setting authority that is responsible to enhance safety, security
and environmental performance of international shipping. As climate change becomes a more recognised global environmental
issue, the implementation of new regulation, known as IMO 2020, aimed at cleaning up shipping emissions with the setting of
a new limit on the sulphur content in ship’s fuel oil in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

In line with such international drive and effort, the Group is committed to ensure all offshore vessels in operation are using low
sulphur fuels as well as source from suppliers’ fuel-efficient marine engines that comply with the nitrogen oxide emission level
requirements set by the governing IMO. The Group also maintain vessels periodic inspection with conducting various Aspect
and Impact assessment on the offshore vessels in operation to avoid possible cause of pollution.

With the compliance to the IMO regulations, our offshore vessels must possess the required certifications of International Air
Pollution Prevention (IAPP) and Engine International Air Pollution Prevention (EIAPP) to safeguard the environment. Likewise, all
offshore vessels also possess the International Energy Efficiency Certificates (IEEC) which complies to the minimum requirement
set by the convention.

Under CSR-conscious industrial practices, the Group has actively reduced its environmental footprint by using non-toxic and
non-polluting tin-free antifouling paints in the coating of ship hulls. Onboard, our manned ships are equipped with energy-
efficient bulbs and sewerage treatment systems which cut down effluent discharge into waterways and the sea, as well as
refrigeration systems with more eco-friendly refrigerants that sharply reduce emissions of ozone-depleting substances and
greenhouse gas into the atmosphere. With the exception of certain vanes, joints and insulations, we do not use asbestos as
this is known to cause very serious, often life-threatening illnesses such as mesothelioma and lung cancer.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)
Sustainable Business Operations (Cont’d)

Vessel Chartering Division (Cont’d)
Liftboat

Liftboat is a self-propelled, multi-functional, self-elevating platform-based vessel with a large open deck suitable for carrying
equipment, materials, supplies to support various offshore oil and gas installation and maintenance. It is efficiently designed to
optimise space and weight in which the energy can be used optimally in all operations on board.

In addition, the liftboat is able to accommodate 150 personnel which in turn reduces the need for additional platforms or
accommodation vessels to be operated for a labour intensive offshore project. Being the advantage of capable for self-
propelled, it offers greater flexibility allowing the liftboat to move from one location to the other within a specific zone without
the need for the tugs. Hence, such circumstances would have added efficiencies and reducing the greenhouse gas emissions
to the environment from the use of additional vessels.

Apart from its service capabilities related to the offshore oil and gas industry activities, liftboats are also an alternative solution
in the support of offshore wind farm installation and maintenance works. Considering the offshore wind is one of renewable
and infinite energy source in the world, it becomes an important role in our future electricity generation in order to tackle climate
change and global warming.

The liftboats are increasingly being recognised as more flexible and cost-efficient options in the market with its diverse range of
advantages. In view of the above, the Group has been actively looking for offshore windfarm maintenance projects to expand
its business areas.

Energy Efficient Practices in Office

The Group recognises that reducing environmental impact will not only lessen our unnecessary costs, but will also decrease
additional carbon in the environment. Our employees are reminded to switch off all printers and lights when not in use. The
same policy extends to the pantry, reception area and meeting rooms. Employees also encouraged to print documents only
when necessary to not only reduce paper wastage but also reduce energy costs and increase the lifespan of printers. All emails
from the Company contain the footnote, “Please consider the environment before printing this email”.

SOCIAL
Employee Benefits and Retention

In order to mitigate high employee turnover, the Group provides a competitive compensation and benefits packages to its
employees, which are aligned with industry practices. The Group also provides training, personal development and a healthy
workplace environment.

Diversity and Equal Employment Opportunities

Recognising that our people are the lifeblood and core to the success of Coastal Group, we are resolute in creating a
conducive atmosphere, by introducing educational and self-development programmes thus enriching our personnel with
career development prospects. It is the policy of the Group to provide equal employment opportunities for all qualified persons
regardless of race, religion, sex, age, nationality, veteran status, and disability. This policy applies to recruitment, placement,
promotion, training, transfer, retention, salary rate and other terms and conditions of employment.

For the current financial year, we have 191 employees with a male to female ratio of 72 : 28 compared to 194 employees (73:

27) in the previous financial year. Our employees are made up of diverse nationalities for both its domestic and international
operations.
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“Donation to Hospice Association of Sandakan”

SOCIAL (Cont’d)

Safety Measures to the Covid-19 Pandemic

To mitigate the impact of Covid-19 pandemic in the workplace environment, Coastal Group has implemented a set of standard
operating procedures which are aligned to the government guidelines. The Group is committed to encourage the practice
of good personal hygiene and maintain the social distancing, which in line with the new normal concept of 3W (wash, wear
and warn) and 3C (crowded places, confined space and close conversation) in order to promote health awareness among
employees upon their return to the workplace.

The Group strives to maintain a safe and health working environment with implementing various preventive measures such as
distribution of personal protective equipment including face masks, availability of hand sanitizers placed at strategic locations,
printable posters regarding Covid-19 adhered at bulletin boards, routine disinfection and cleaning activities within the office
premises.

Local Community

Coastal Group fully subscribes to the concept of giving back to the community and remains active in providing financial
assistance towards worthy causes such as schools, sport and leisure bodies as well as the community and other charitable
organisations in support of education, children and youth development.

During the financial year, Coastal Group made monetary donations to:

i)  The Hospice Association of Sandakan
i)  Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Sandakan for its 10th Anniversary Fund Raising
iii)  Welfare and Recreation Club of Hospital Duchess of Kent Sandakan for its Covid-19 Fund

Coastal Group will continuously adhere to its principle of performing social responsibility and contribute to the local community
with concrete action by taking part in campaigns such as public charity and educational support.

Coastal Group has and will continue to operate in accordance with business practices of the highest standard so as to
discharge its responsibilities to its shareholders while playing a meaningful role in the economic, environment and social risks
and opportunities.

Program of Support to the Community and the Environment (“PACMA”)

PACMA is a Mexican national oil company, Petréleos Mexicanos (“PEMEX”) based corporate social responsibility initiative
designed to promote sustainable development and strengthen relations between communities and oil and gas companies.
Coastal Group, as a PEMEX contractor, we are responsible to provide financial contribution to PACMA and work alongside our
strategic partner, PEMEX in order to give back to the communities located in areas where we operate.

The objective of PACMA is create a group of projects, works or actions, which contribute to obtain and extend the Social License
to Operate, fostering human development, generating productive capacities and forging long-term sustainable development
projects. PACMA offers support in seven basic areas such as health, safety, infrastructure, equity, environmental protection,
education and productive projects.

Through the implementation of PACMA projects, it will build a climate of cooperation and mutual understanding with residents,
authorities, institutions and organisations within the areas of influences of PEMEX. In addition, it allows for harnessing
the potential of the oil and gas industry to facilitate social development as well as avoiding effects that could conflict with
environmental stakeholders.
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OUR SUSTAINABILITY GOALS
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Year 2022: Setting Decarbonisation Plan

Since its establishment in 1976, the Coastal Group not stopped in transforming itself towards its sustainability goals. Over
the last few decades, Coastal Group has transformed itself from a marine transportation company to a shipbuilder for marine
transportation vessels, and thereafter diversified further into “build-then-sell” of Offshore Support Vessels (“OSVs”). As of to
date, the Group has successfully transformed itself into an energy infrastructure company.

In order to be aligned with Goal 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy) and Goal 13 (Climate Action) of the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals, the Group’s focus shall be on the investments into cleaner energy infrastructure projects, such as natural
gas related infrastructure projects which promotes energy savings, reduction of CO2 emissions, deliver widely accessible and
affordable energy to everyone.

Other than focusing on cleaner energy as mentioned in the above, the Group intends to dispose its OSVs gradually to further
reduce its CO2 emissions footprint.

From now till 2030, the Group shall strive to establish its medium to long term strategic plans for diversification into green
energy sector such as solar power plant, windfarm, carbon capture and storage, etc.

Year 2030s: Accelerating Actions
In the light of the natural gas is the most important lower-carbon energy source in the world, Coastal Group will scale up its
investments within the natural gas sector, which would continue to provide sustainable recurring earnings for the Group to build

up its war chest for next phase of transformation.

During this phase, Coastal Group would be actively pursuing opportunities within the green energy sector. The Group will
maintain its prudent business strategy to invest in greener projects with greater sustainability and earnings visibility.

Year 2040s: Scaling Solutions

In line with the United Nations’ strong emphasis on the “Net Zero Carbon Emissions”, the Group aspires to transform its core
business from natural gas sector to greener energy sector. During this phase, the Group would accelerate and increase its
investments into greener energy sector.

Year 2050s: Net Zero Carbon Emission

The Group endeavours to maintain its business operation in full compliance with Paris Agreement as well as facilitate positive
social and environmental impact in pursuit of overall net zero emissions to achieve a sustainable low carbon future.
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The Audit Committee was established on 2 December 2002.

The Board aims to ensure that the quarterly reports, annual financial statements, the annual review of operations in the annual
report are presented in a manner which provides a balanced and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance. The
Audit Committee has been delegated with the responsibility to review the quarterly reports of the Group, focusing particularly
on compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements.

In the course of audit of the Group’s financial statements, the external auditors would highlight to the Audit Committee and the
Board, matters that require the Board’s attention. Audit Committee meetings are attended by the external auditors for purposes
of presenting their audit plan and for presenting their comments on the audited financial statements. At least once a year, these
meetings are held without the presence of the management of the Company to ensure that the external auditors can freely
discuss and express their opinion on any matter to the Audit Committee. In addition, the external auditors are invited to attend
the AGM of the Company and are required to be available to answer shareholders’ questions on the conduct of the statutory
audit and contents of their audit report.

To assess the independence of External Auditors, the Audit Committee will seek assurance from the External Auditors, confirming
that they are, and have been independent throughout the conduct of the audit engagement with the Company in accordance
with the independence criteria set out by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. In this regard, the Audit Committee having
assessed the independence of Messrs. Crowe Malaysia PLT as External Auditors of the Company and reviewed the level of
non-audit services rendered by Crowe Malaysia PLT to the Company for the financial year under review, is satisfied with the
competency and audit independence of Crowe Malaysia PLT and recommend their re-appointment to the Board, upon which
the shareholders’ approval will be sought at the next Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee comprises of the following members:

Name Designation Directorship

Jacob O Pang Su Yin Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang Member Independent Non-Executive Director
Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub Member Independent Non-Executive Director

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The term of reference of the Audit Committee are available for reference at www.coastalcontracts.com.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

The Audit Committee held five (5) meetings during the financial year from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022. These meetings were
held via Zoom on 28 September 2021, 8 October 2021, 30 November 2021, 28 February 2022 and 26 May 2022. Details of the
attendance of the meetings by the Committee Members are as follows:

Name No. of Meetings Attended % of Meetings Attended
Jacob O Pang Su Yin 5/5 100%
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang 5/5 100%
Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub 5/5 100%
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SUMMARY OF WORK OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The activities of the Audit Committee in the discharge of its duties and responsibilities for the financial year are summarised as
follows:

i) Reviewed the external auditors’ scope of work and their audit plan.

i) Reviewed with the external auditors the results of their audit, the audit report and recommendations in respect of
improvements in internal control procedures noted in the course of their audit.

iii) Reviewed and approved the internal audit plan presented by the internal auditors.

iv) Reviewed with the internal auditors the internal audit report.

v) Reviewed the Annual Report for the year 2022 and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the financial year ended 30 June 2022 prior to submission to the Board for consideration and approval. The review was to
ensure that the audited financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2016
and the applicable approved accounting standards issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board.

vi) Reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and
the applicable approved accounting standards issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board.

vii) Reviewed the quarterly unaudited financial statements and the explanatory notes thereon and recommend to the Board
for approval.

viii) Reviewed the related party transactions entered into by the Group.

ix) Reviewed the application of corporate governance principles and the extent of the Group’s compliance with the best
practices set out under the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2021 for the purpose of preparing the Corporate
Governance Statement pursuant to the Listing Requirements.

X)  Reviewed the Risk Management Framework and risk register of the Group, including corruption risks (i.e. investigation of
whistleblowing reports).

SUMMARY OF WORK OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Board has engaged the services of an independent professional firm to carry out the internal audit function of the Group,
to provide independent assurance and assist the Audit Committee in discharging its duties and responsibilities. The functions
of the internal audit include the review and/or appraisal of the effectiveness of the risk management, internal control and
governance processes within the Group.

During the year, the internal audit function was performed by an independent professional firm to identify and assess the
system of internal controls of the Group. Areas for improvement and recommendations for Management on the weaknesses in
internal control were highlighted. The system of internal controls was satisfactory and has not resulted in any material losses,
contingencies and uncertainties that would require disclosures in the Group’s Annual Report.

A summary of the activities of the internal audit function for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 is as follows:

i) Performed audit work in accordance with the pre-approved internal audit plan.

iy  Carried out assessment and test of the internal controls within the Group.

iiij  Reviewed and reported on the effectiveness and adequacy of the existing internal control policies and procedures.
iv)  Provided recommendations for the improvement of the internal control policies and procedures.

STATEMENT ON EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has established an Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) for a period of five (5) years effective from 16
December 2021. The ESOS was approved by shareholders on 16 December 2021 and will be governed by the ESOS By-Laws.
During the financial year, the Company has granted 49,024,800 share options under the ESOS. These options expire on 15
December 2026.

The ESOS Committee which has been formed to administer the ESOS, comprises of three (3) members that consists of
two (2) Executive Directors and the Head of Human Resource Department. The ESOS Committee is primarily responsible
for recommending to the Board, the criteria and allocation of any ESOS options to be granted to eligible employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and ensuring that all exercises of ESOS options are in compliance with the Main
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and in accordance with the ESOS By-Laws and Company’s
Constitution. The ESOS Committee shall meet whenever necessary to fulfil its functions.
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STATEMENT ON EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The option prices and the details in the movement of the options granted are as follows:

Number of Options Over Unissued Ordinary Shares
Date of Offer Exercise Price 1.7.2021 Granted Exercised Forfeited 30.6.2022

16 December 2021 RM0.99 - 49,024,800 (3,997,040) (92,200) 44,935,560

The options which were forfeited during the financial year were due to resignations and deceased of employees.

The details of the options, held by the Directors pursuant to the Company’s ESOS in respect of the financial year ended 30
June 2022 are as follows:

Number of Options Over Unissued Ordinary Shares

Balance Balance
as of as of

Name of Directors 1.7.2021 Granted Exercised 30.6.2022
Executive Directors
Ng Chin Heng - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Ng Chin Shin - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Ng Chin Keuan - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Independent
Non-Executive Directors
Jacob O Pang Su Yin - 200,000 - 200,000
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang - 200,000 - 200,000
Tuan Hij. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub - 200,000 - 200,000

The details of the options, held by the key senior management of the Group pursuant to the Company’s ESOS in respect of the
financial year ended 30 June 2022 are as follows:

Number of Options Over Unissued Ordinary Shares

Balance Balance

as of as of

Name of Key Senior Management 1.7.2021 Granted Exercised 30.6.2022
Pang Fong Thau - 2,200,000 - 2,200.000
Ng Chin Kok - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Alice Ng - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Liow Ming Yew - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Lau Joo Ting - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Ng San Chen - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Kong Wei Ket - 960,000 - 960,000
Ng San Yang - 163,800 - 163,800

In accordance with the By-Laws of the Company’s ESOS, not more than eighty (80) percent of the new Company’s shares
available under the scheme shall be allocated in aggregate to the Directors and senior management. During the financial year
and since commencement of the scheme, the actual percentage granted to them is approximately forty seven (47) percent.

29



Coastal Contracts Bhd. Registration No. 200001015043 (517649-A)
Annual Report 2022

Corporate Governance Overview Statement

The Board of Directors considers corporate governance as a fundamental part of its responsibilities in managing the business
and affairs of the Group and is fully committed to maintaining high standards at all times. Set out below is a statement on how
the Group has applied the principles and the extent of its compliance with the best practice as stipulated in the Malaysian Code
on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) 2021.

The Board of Directors plays a primary role in corporate governance by setting out the strategic direction of the Group,
establishing goals and monitoring the achievement of the said goals. A Strategic Plan has been adopted as one of the key
policies in ensuring that the Group crystallises its future plans and provides a clear direction for the Board and the Management
of the Group. A structured risk management process has been established to better identify, formalise, monitor within the
various operating units and manage the business risk functions affecting the Group. This is elaborated in greater details in the
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 42 to 43 of this Annual Report.

The Executive Directors take the primary responsibility of managing the Group’s business and resources. The intimate
knowledge of the Executive Directors and their hands-on management practices have enabled the Group to become a leader
in the industry.

PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS
l. BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
Practice 1.1 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board
In order to ensure effectiveness and discharge of its fiduciary and leadership duties, the Board:

. Retains full and effective control of the affairs of the Group;

. Formulates policies and strategies;

. Actively oversees and monitors management’s performance;

. Reviews and adopts strategic corporate plans;

. Approves the Group’s annual budget, including major capital commitments;

. Conducts periodic review of the achievements against business targets;

. Identifies principal risks and ensures the implementation of appropriate internal control systems and mitigation
strategies;

. Oversees and evaluates the conduct of the Group’s business;

. Ensures effective communication amongst the shareholders;

. Considers emerging issues which may be material to the business affairs of the Group;

. Ensures that the Group has a proper succession plan for its senior management and Board members;

. Any other matters which require the Board’s approval pursuant to the applicable rules, laws and regulations;

. Identify, assess and monitor all corruption and bribery risks and perform corruption and bribery risk assessment on
an ongoing basis; and

. Oversees the implementation and administration of whistleblowing policy and procedures.

Apart from its statutory duties and responsibilities stated above, the Board oversees the management and affairs of the
Group. Certain matters are specifically reserved for the Board’s decision, including overall strategic direction, operational
plan, capital expenditure, mergers and acquisitions, capital projects, Group’s operating and financial performance and
review of risks affecting the Group. The Board also delegates the formulation of business strategies and policies, and day-
to-day management to the Executive Directors and the Management. The Board is responsible for overseeing that the
delegated tasks to Executive Directors and Management are carried out in accordance with the Group’s core values and
ethical guidelines with reference to the Directors’ Code of Conduct of the Group.

Overall, the Board’s key responsibilities reflect the recommendations prescribed by MCCG 2021.
Practice 1.2 Roles of Chairman

Mr. Ng Chin Heng serves as Executive Chairman. He provides top-level leadership and manages the overall direction of
the Group. He also ensures that the views of shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole in order to identify
issues and concerns. He is responsible for executing the strategy as agreed by the Board and developing objectives by
leading the senior executive team. In addition, he ensures that the Group’s risks are adequately addressed and appropriate
internal controls are in place. Scheduling regular and effective evaluations of the Board’s performance is also one of the
Executive Chairman’s responsibilities.
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PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont’d)
Practice 1.3 Separation of roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

Although the position of Chairman of the Board is to be held by a Non-Independent Executive Director, Mr. Ng Chin Heng,
it however does not imply that the independence of the Board is compromised. This is perceived as appropriate and
of benefit to the Group given that Mr Ng has continued to demonstrate strong leadership to the Board and proven his
competency as an Executive Director, especially in driving the Group to grow year-on-year. The Nomination Committee,
which comprises of all the Independent Non-Executive Directors, takes the views that the current composition and mix of
Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors for the Board is appropriate.

Practice 1.4 Separation of roles of Chairman from Board Committees

Mr. Ng Chin Heng, the Executive Chairman relinquished his membership of the Remuneration Committee on 30 August
2022 in compliance with MCCG 2021.

Practice 1.5 Company Secretaries

The Company Secretaries who are experienced, competent and knowledgeable on the laws and regulations, as well as
directives issued by the regulatory authorities, provide clear and sound advice on requirements and procedures to be
formulated and adopted by the Group arising from new statues and guidelines implemented by regulatory authorities.
The Board is also briefed on proposed contents and timing of material announcements to be made to Bursa Malaysia. In
ensuring that Board meetings are properly convened, the Company Secretaries fulfil their attendance in Board meetings.
Not only that, the Company Secretaries also work collaboratively with the Management in assuring timely and appropriate
information flows within the Group.

Practice 1.6 Information and Support of Directors

Prior to Board meetings, an agenda together with the relevant documents and information are distributed to all Directors
within sufficient time to enable the Directors to review, seek additional information or clarification on the matters to be
deliberated at Board meetings unless in unavoidable circumstances. The Senior Management and/or other relevant Board
members will provide comprehensive explanation of pertinent issues and recommendations. The issues would then be
deliberated and discussed thoroughly by the Board prior to decision-making.

Apart from the above, the Board members are supplied with information and reports on financial, operational, corporate,
regulatory, business development and audit matters by way of board reports or upon specific request to enable them to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

Meetings and Time Commitments

Board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year at quarterly intervals with additional meetings convened when
necessary. In intervals between Board meetings, when matters require Board decision, Board approvals are sought via
Directors’ Circular Resolutions (DCR) with sufficient information required to make an informed decision.

The proceedings of the Board meetings are conducted in line with a planned agenda in order to facilitate constructive and
profound deliberations. The agenda is furnished to the Directors at least 7 days prior to the Board meeting, together with
proposal papers and reports to allow sufficient time for the Directors to review the Board papers and to provide insightful
comments during the Board meeting. The Board had held five (5) meetings during the financial year from 1 July 2021 to 30
June 2022 where the Board deliberated and considered a variety of matters including the Group’s financial results, major
investments, strategic decisions and direction of the Group.

Where a potential conflict arises in the Group’s transactions involving any Director’s interest, such Director is required to
declare his/her interests and abstain from the decision making process.
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PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont’d)
Meetings and Time Commitments (Cont’d)

The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors towards fulfilling their roles and
responsibilities. Shown below are the number of meetings attended by each Director for the financial year from 1 July 2021
to 30 June 2022, which were held via Zoom on 28 September 2021, 8 October 2021, 30 November 2021, 28 February
2022 and 26 May 2022.

Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings Attended %

Ng Chin Heng Executive Chairman 5/5 100%
Ng Chin Shin Executive Director 5/5 100%
Ng Chin Keuan Executive Director 5/5 100%
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100%
Jacob O Pang Su Yin Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100%
Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100%

The Directors are aware of the time commitment expected from each of them to attend to the Group’s matters, including
attendance at Board and other committees’ meetings.

All Directors are required to immediately notify the Board when accepting any new external board appointments. Pursuant
to paragraph 15.06(1) of Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, any Board member shall
not hold more than five (5) directorships in public listed companies at any one time.

Practice 2.1 Board Charter

A Board Charter has been established and approved by the Board. The Board Charter acts as a source of reference and
primary induction literature in providing insights to Board members and senior management. The Board will review Board
Charter annually to ensure that it remains consistent with the Board’s objectives and responsibilities as well as relevant
standards of corporate governance. The last review was done on 11 October 2022.

The details of the Board Charter are available for reference at www.coastalcontracts.com.
Practice 3.1 Code of Conduct and Ethics

A Directors’ Code of Conduct has been established and approved. This code sets out the standards of conducts and
basic principles to guide the Board in carrying out their duties and responsibilities to the highest standards of honesty and
integrity.

The Group is committed to ensuring that its business and operations are conducted in an ethical, moral and legal manner.

An Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy (“ABC Policy”) was established to provide information and guidance to those
working for Coastal Group on how to recognise and deal with bribery and corruption issues, as well as understand
their responsibilities. In addition, the implementation of ABC Policy is aimed at ensuring that the Group has adequate
procedures to prevent and detect bribery and corruption.

The Board will monitor compliance and review regularly with the ABC Policy in order to ensure that the ABC Policy continues
to remain relevant and appropriate. Besides that, any Director, officer or employee of the Group suspects contravention
of the ABC Policy are required to promptly report the violations in accordance with the Group’s Whistleblowing Policies
and Procedures.
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont’d)

Practice 3.2 Whistleblowing Policies and Procedures

Whistleblowing Policies and Procedures provide an avenue for all employees to disclose any improper conduct occurring
in the course of dealing with Coastal and its businesses and operations. Under the policy, confidentiality of the matter
raised and the identity of the whistle blower is protected. Any Director, officer or employee of the Group can report any
improper conduct by writing to the Audit Committee Chairman, Mr. Jacob O Pang Su Yin at jacob.pang@coastalcontracts.
com.

Practice 4.1 Sustainability Leadership

The Board of Directors oversees the development of the sustainability performance of the organisation. The Board takes
into account sustainability considerations when exercising its duties on the implementation and development of the
Company’s business strategic plans. The senior management and Heads of divisions will give recommendations and
convey the material matters related to sustainability identified to the Board.

Practice 4.2 Sustainability Reporting

The Company supports this Practice under the MCCG 2021 and will work with all stakeholders towards its journey to
sustainable growth. During the Company’s recent investors’ briefing, the Company has unveiled its sustainability goals
roadmap, which is also disclosed in the Sustainability Statement.

Practice 4.3 Sustainability Training

In order to keep abreast and updated with the latest on sustainability practices, the Board shall proactively attend more
sustainability courses and conferences in the near future. The Board may also engage with external consultants to provide
guidance to the Board and senior management of the Company on addressing sustainability issues.

Practice 4.4 Sustainability Evaluation

The Company shall include new performance criteria related to Company’s material sustainability risks and opportunities
when conducting the annual performance evaluation on the Board and senior management.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Practice 5.1 Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of the following members:

Name Designation Directorship

Jacob O Pang Su Yin Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang Member Independent Non-Executive Director
Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub Member Independent Non-Executive Director

The Nomination Committee held two (2) meetings during the financial year from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022. These
meetings were held via Zoom on 8 October 2021 and 26 May 2022. Details of the attendance of the meetings by the
Committee Members are as follows:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended %

Jacob O Pang Su Yin 2/2 100%
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang 2/2 100%
Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub 2/2 100%
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BOARD COMPOSITION (Cont’d)
Practice 5.1 Nomination Committee (Cont’d)
A summary of the activities of the Nomination Committee during the year is as follows:

. Reviewed the mix of skills, experience and other qualities, including core competencies, of the Board members;

. Assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Committees of the Board and the contribution of each
individual Director;

. Provide recommendations on candidates for directorship, re-appointment and re-election of Board members and the
Board members to sit on Board Committees;

. Discussed and reviewed the Board’s succession plans; and

. Support Directors’ induction programs and continuing development.

Annual Assessment of Independence

The Nomination Committee shall assess the independence of each Independent Director in accordance with the definition
of Independent Director as listed on paragraph 1.01 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. Based on the assessment, the Nomination Committee is satisfied that the independence of the Board will not be
impaired by its current board composition.

Practice 5.2 Board Composition

The Board currently comprises of six (6) members of whom three (3) are Executive Directors and three (3) are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. In line with the recommendation of MCCG 2021, half of Coastal’'s Board of Directors are
Independent Directors. The presence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors provides effective check and balance
to the functioning of the Board. The three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors are not employees and there are
no relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors’ judgement. They bring an external perspective and help develop strategic plans, as well as scrutinising the
Management’s performance in attaining its goals.

The Board views the number and composition of the Directors to be optimal and well-balanced given that its members are
drawn from varied backgrounds with proper mix of skills, character, integrity, competence and time commitment, bringing
in-depth and diverse experiences and perspectives to the Group’s business operations. The profile of each Director is
presented on pages 10 to 12 of this Annual Report.

Practice 5.3 Tenure of Independent Director

The Board is fully aware of one of the recommendations of MCCG 2021 which states that the tenure of an Independent
Director should not exceed a cumulative term of nine (9) years. Should such a case occur, he may continue subject to his
re-designation as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director. Alternatively, he may also be retained as Independent Non-
Executive Director subject to shareholders’ approval with justification of his retention.

Practice 5.4 Policy on the tenure of Independent Director

The Board does not have a policy that limits the tenure of Independent Directors to nine (9) years without further extension.
Practice 5.5 Board Diversity

The Group practices non-discrimination in the age, gender, ethnicity or religion towards the organisation, which includes
the selection of Board members. It is important to have a Board that is composed of best-qualified individuals who

possess the requisite knowledge, experience, independence and good judgement so as to ensure that the Board functions
effectively and able to discharge its duties in the best interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders.
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Practice 5.6 Sourcing of Directors

The Nomination Committee is responsible to ensure that the procedures for appointing new Directors are transparent and
also appointments are made on merits. The process for the appointment of a new director is summarised in the sequence
as follows:

i)  The candidate is identified upon the recommendation by the existing Directors and/or Senior Management;

i) In evaluating the suitability of candidates to the Board, the Nomination Committee considers the competency,
experience, commitment, contribution and integrity of the candidates, and in the case of candidates proposed for
appointment as Independent Non-Executive Directors, the candidate’s independence;

il Recommendation to be made by Nomination Committee to the Board. This also includes recommendation for
appointment as a member of the various Board Committees, where necessary; and

iv) Decision to be made by the Board on the proposed new appointment, including appointment to the various Board
committees.

Any new nomination received is put to the full Board for assessment and endorsement.
Practice 5.7 Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to Clause No. 100 of the Company’s Constitution, an election of Directors shall take place each year and at every
AGM of the Company, one-third (1/3) of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office provided always that all
Directors shall retire from office at least once in every three (3) years but shall be eligible for re-election. For the FYE 2022,
the following Directors who retire by rotation in accordance with Clause No. 100 of the Company’s Constitution and being
eligible, have offered themselves for such re-election:

() MrJacob O Pang Su Yin; and
(i)  Mr Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang

Shareholders are well-informed by the Company for the appointment or re-election of Directors through the Notice of
AGM which is attached as part of the Annual Report. Profiles of Directors are also published in the Annual Report, with
information on the age, gender, qualifications, working experience, tenure of service, directorship in other companies, any
family relationship or conflict of interest as well as shareholdings in the Company.

Practice 5.8 Nomination Committee Chairman

In line with the recommendation of MCCG 2021, the Nomination Committee is chaired by Jacob O Pang Su Yin, an
Independent Director.

Practice 5.9 Women Directors

Coastal’s Board does not have any women directors. Although no women have been appointed to the Board of Directors,
it does not imply that the Board is not in favour of having a woman as Board member. The Board has always believed
in providing equal opportunities to all genders based on merit and selecting the best candidate to attain the Company’s
strategic objectives and goals.

Practice 5.10 Policy on Gender Diversity

The Board does not have a specific policy on gender diversity. There are no women directors in the Board. However, there
are two (2) women in Coastal’s key senior management team.
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BOARD COMPOSITION (Cont’d)
Practice 6.1 Evaluation of Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors
Annual Assessment of Existing Directors and Board Committees

The Nomination Committee assesses the performance of all the Directors due for re-election and makes recommendations
to the Board for their re-election to be tabled for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGMs. The process of
assessing the Directors is an on-going responsibility of the entire Board, made possible by a formal evaluation process to
annually assess the effectiveness of the Board Committees, as well as the contribution and performance of each individual
Director. The criteria used includes an assessment of their roles, duties, responsibilities, competency, expertise and
contribution whereas for the Board and Board Committees, the criteria used include composition, structure, accountability,
responsibilities, adequacy of information and processes.

Directors’ Training

The Board sees Directors’ training as an on-going practice and regularly assesses their training needs so as to develop
and appraise their knowledge and skills required to fulfil their responsibilities.

All the Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme as prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad within four (4) months of their appointments. During the financial year from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022, the details
of seminars attended by the Directors are as follows:

Name of Director Seminar

Ng Chin Heng e Tax & Budget Webinar

Ng Chin Shin ¢ Tax & Budget Webinar

Ng Chin Keuan e Tax & Budget Webinar

Jacob O Pang Su Yin e Audit Oversight Board Conversion with Audit Committee
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang e Audit Oversight Board Conversion with Audit Committee
Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub e Audit Oversight Board Conversion with Audit Committee

The Directors will continue to undergo relevant training programmes to keep abreast with latest changes in laws, regulations
and the business environment to equip them with the knowledge to discharge their duties effectively. Furthermore, the
Company Secretary circulates the relevant guidelines on statutory and regulatory requirements from time to time for the
Directors’ reference and will brief the Board members on these updates as and when required.

REMUNERATION
Practice 7.1 Remuneration Policy and Procedures for Directors and Senior Management

Basic salaries for Executive Directors are fixed for the duration of their contract and any adjustment of the basic salary will
be reviewed and endorsed by the Remuneration Committee, considering factors such as individual performance, inflation
price index, affordability, industry’s practices and benchmarks. As for Non-Executive Directors, the quantum of Directors’
fees is recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board after taking into account of the fiduciary duties and
responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors under the relevant regulatory requirements.

Bonus scheme which is based on the individual and Company’s performance is offered to the Executive Directors and the
bonuses payable are to be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.
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Practice 7.1 Remuneration Policy and Procedures for Directors and Senior Management (Cont’d)

All benefits in kind are made available as appropriate. In respect of the Executive Directors, contribution is made to
the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”), the national mandatory defined contribution plan. The Company is subject to
reimbursement of associated expenses incurred by the Directors in the course of fulfilling their duties as Executive
Directors.

The Board as a whole determines and endorses the remuneration of the Directors after considering the proposals from the
Remuneration Committee. Individual Directors concerned shall abstain from discussions and decisions in respect of their
own remuneration. The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined by an ordinary resolution of the Company pursuant to
Clause No. 123 of the Company’s Constitution.

Practice 7.2 Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the following members:

Name Designation Directorship

Jacob O Pang Su Yin Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang Member Independent Non-Executive Director
Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub Member Independent Non-Executive Director

Tuan Hij. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 30 August 2022
in place of Mr Ng Chin Heng, who has vacated his office as a member of the Remuneration Committee on the same day.

The Committee shall meet when there are matters referred to them for consideration or as necessary. The Committee has
access to professional advice on remuneration matter from within the Group and external specialists of the field in making
recommendations to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting during the financial year, which was attended by all of the Committee
members. The Remuneration Committee ensures that formal and transparent remuneration policies and procedures
have been put in place to attract and retain Directors of adequate competency in order to run the Group successfully.
Remuneration packages for Executive Directors shall be fair in accordance with their achievements and contributions to
the Group. The Committee has the right to obtain independent consultants’ advice and information about remuneration
practices elsewhere.

The Terms of Reference of Remuneration Committee is available for reference at the Company’s website at www.
coastalcontracts.com.
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REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

Practice 8.1 and 8.2 Disclosure of Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The details of Directors’ remuneration of the Company comprising remuneration paid/payable from the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 are as follows:

From the Company

Share
Fees & Salaries & Based Statutory Benefits-

Allowances Bonuses Payment Contribution in-kind Total
Directors RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Executive Directors
Ng Chin Keuan - - - - 13 13
Independent
Non-Executive Directors
Jacob O Pang Su Yin 54 - 49 - - 103
Loh Thian Sang @
Lo Thiang Siang 24 ) 49 1 ) 74
Tuan Hj. Ir Intizam Bin Ayub 24 - 48 - - 72
Total 102 - 146 1 13 262
From the Group

Share
Fees & Salaries & Based Statutory Benefits-

Allowances Bonuses Payment Contribution in-kind Total
Directors RM’000 RM’000 RM’00 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Executive Directors
Ng Chin Heng - 909 921 12 10 1,852
Ng Chin Shin - 347 534 14 13 908
Ng Chin Keuan - 308 534 12 - 854
Total - 1,564 1,989 38 23 3,614

The remuneration of the top five senior management is not disclosed as it is deemed be detrimental to its business
interests, given the competitive human resource environment for personnel with the requisite knowledge, expertise and

experience in the Company’s business activities, where poaching has become common place.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Practice 9.1 Audit Committee Chairman
Practice 9.4 (Step Up) Independence of Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit Committee is made up exclusively of Independent Directors based on the Step-Up recommendation of the
Code and also meets the Listing Requirements of which states the Audit Committee is to comprise no fewer than three
(8) members and that all members must be Non-Executive Directors with a majority being Independent Directors. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director. The role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee as well
as their rights are set out in the Terms of Reference contained on the corporate website. Details of the activities carried out
by the Audit Committee for the financial year are set out on pages 27 to 29.

There is no separate committee to govern risk management, that task being undertaken by the Audit Committee.
Practice 9.2 and 9.3 Oversight and Assessment of the Suitability and Independence of External Auditors

To ensure independence, the Company obtains written assurance from the external auditors confirming that they
have been independent throughout the conduct of the audit engagement in accordance with the terms of all relevant
professional and regulatory requirements. The Audit Committee also reviews and assesses the appointment and re-
appointment of the external auditors via an assessment checklist in accordance with the assessment criteria covering
regulatory requirements. Terms of engagement for services provided by the external auditors are also reviewed by the
Audit Committee prior to submission to the Board for approval. The Board, upon concurrence with the outcome of the
assessment approved the re-appointment of external auditor based on the Audit Committee’s recommendation subject to
shareholder’s approval at the annual general meeting.

It is the policy of the Audit Committee to meet with the external auditors at least two (2) times a year to discuss the audit
plan, audit findings and views in respect of the integrity of the Group’s financial statements. The external auditors are also
invited to attend the annual general meeting.

Practice 9.5 Financial Literacy of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee possesses the right mix of skills to discharge its duties effectively.

All members of the Audit Committee play key supporting roles by contributing their knowledge, guidance and experience
towards making independent judgement on issues of strategies, performance, resources and standards of conduct.
Majority of the members of the Audit Committee have the necessary financial, technical and commercial expertise required
to meet their responsibilities and provide an effective level of challenge to management.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

Practice 10.1 and 10.2 Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal control covering not only financial
controls but also operational, compliance as well as risk management. The internal control system is designed to meet the
Group’s particular needs and to manage the risk to which it is exposed. The system, by its inherent limitations, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. The Board reviews risk exposures, evaluates

risk and approves risk management policies to ensure effective risk management profile is in place.

The Board’s statement on risk management and internal control is set out on pages 42 to 43 of this Annual Report.
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Practice 11.1 and 11.2 Internal Audit Function
The Group’s internal audit function was outsourced to an independent professional firm to provide independent assurance
and assist the Audit Committee in discharging its duties and responsibilities. The functions of the internal audit include
the review and/or appraisal of the effectiveness of the risk management, internal control and governance processes within
the Group. The internal audit function is prescribed in more detail in the Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report.
PRINCIPLE C - INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Practice 12.1 Communication with Stakeholders
The Board recognises the importance of an effective communication channel between the Board, shareholders and the general
public. The Board reviews and implements corporate communication policies with the shareholders, other key stakeholders
and the public. The annual reports, quarterly results, press releases and any announcements on material corporate exercises
are the primary modes of disseminating information on the Group’s business activities and performance. Apart from that,
the Company also took part in briefing sessions with analysts. In order to further enhance its effective communication with
stakeholders, Coastal has appointed an Investor Relations firm under the Bursa Malaysia — Investors Relations and Public
Relations Incentive Program.
Practice 12.2 Integrated Reporting
The Group has yet to adopt integrated reporting as it does not fall within the definition of Large Companies.
Practice 13.1 Notice of General Meeting
The notice of general meetings has been sent out to shareholders in line with the minimum notice period of 21 days as
stipulated in the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In addition, the notices will also be
published in at least one newspaper of national circulation for a wider dissemination of such notice and to encourage greater
shareholders’ participation at general meeting.

Practice 13.2 Directors to attend the General Meeting

All the Directors shall endeavour to attend the general meetings to allow the shareholders to raise questions and clarify any
issues they may have relating to each resolution tabled for approval.

Practice 13.3 Electronic Voting
In line with Practice 13.3 of the MCCG 2021 in promoting electronic voting, the Board had assessed and of the opinion that

the electronic voting is not necessary. However, the Board shall consider adopting such recommendation when there are large
number of shareholders or meetings held in remote locations.
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Practice 13.4 Interaction between Company and its Shareholders

The Company’s general meeting provides an opportunity for direct interaction with shareholders where questions and concerns
raised would serve as feedback to the Group’s business and corporate decisions.

Practice 13.5 Conduct of Virtual Meeting

In line with Practice 13.5 of the MCCG 2021, the Board had assessed the need to conduct virtual meeting and of the opinion
that the conduct of virtual meeting is not necessary. However, the Board shall consider adopting such recommendation when
there are large number of shareholders or meetings held in remote locations.

Practice 13.6 Circulation of Minutes of General Meeting

In line with Practice 13.6 of the MCCG 2021, the Board shall ensure that the Company shall post each general meeting’s
outcome on its website within 30 business days after the completion of the general meeting.

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES OF THE CODE

This statement is prepared in compliance with Paragraph 15.25 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and it is to be read together with the Corporate Governance Report 2022 of the Company which is available

in the Company’s website at www.coastalcontracts.com.

The Board is satisfied that the Company has complied with the Code during the financial year with regard to the recommendations
supporting the Principles except as otherwise stated.

This statement was presented and approved at the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 11 October 2022.
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The Board of Directors (“Board”) is pleased to present the Group’s Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for the
financial year ended 30 June 2022. This statement has been prepared in accordance with Main Market Listing Requirements
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, Paragraph 15.26(b), and in compliance with Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
2021.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors recognises the importance of sound systems of internal control and effective risk management practices
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying, assessing and managing the principal risks faced by the
Group, which is in accordance with the guidance as contained in the “Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control:
Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers”. This process includes reviewing and updating the system of internal controls to take
into consideration changes in the regulatory and business environment.

In view of the limitations inherent in any system of internal control, the Group’s internal control system can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as it is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risks that may impede the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The review of the risk management and internal control reports is delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Risk management has been firmly embedded in the Group’s management system. It is a process of understanding and managing
the risks that the Group is inevitably subject to in attempting to achieve its business objectives. The Board primary objective
and direction in managing the Group’s risks are focused on sustaining the achievement of the Group’s business objectives with
the lowest possible chance of failure. The Board and the Management are responsible to ensure there is an appropriate risk
management process for identifying, assessing, responding, monitoring and reviewing significant risks faced by the Group in
all aspects. The Management and Head of Departments are responsible for managing the risks of their respective departments
on an ongoing basis.

1. Identify
risks

4. Risk monitor

& review

3. Risk
response

The diagram above sets out the Group Risk Management framework. At least once a year, a Group-wide risk assessment is
performed to identify the nature and extent of such risks and determine respective mitigating steps. The Group has formalised
the Risk Register, which identifies the risks and associated mitigating control activities and future actions.

Risks are identified by assessing the probability and impact of their occurrence and are evaluated as Low, Medium or High. The
level of residual risk is determined after identifying and evaluating the effectiveness of existing controls or mitigating measures.

The Group’s identified risks are categorised into external risks, business risks, financial risks and operational risks. Based on
the Risk Register, the Board and the Management, after further analysis and discussion, shall annually review the previously
identified risks, update their likelihood of occurrence and potential impact. Should there be new risks emerging as a result of
the changing environment, the Board and the Management will update the Risk Register immediately and ensure appropriate
action plans be taken in response to the new risks.
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OTHER KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Ad hoc and scheduled meetings at operation sites are held to identify, discuss and resolve operational issues. The Board is
aware of and involved, when necessary, in resolving any significant issue identified at those meetings. The Group is structured
as such that the heads of each operating unit have clear reporting line. There is also proper segregation of duties to ensure safe
custody of the Group’s assets.

The Executive Directors are actively involved in the day-to-day operations of the Group. The Executive Directors ensure that
all employees have clear understanding of their roles and responsibilities and that the Group’s operations are carried out in
accordance with standards set and expected by the Board.

The Executive Directors have established a structured and formal employee appraisal system that ensures employees are
remunerated based on their performance.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group outsources its Internal Audit function to an independent professional firm, whose remit is to the Audit Committee.
The Internal Auditors have carried out the internal audit covering the period under review and presented their report to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has deliberated on the contents of the report and is satisfied that appropriate actions
are being taken to address all the weaknesses highlighted. The costs incurred for the Internal Audit function in respect of the
financial year ended 30 June 2022 was RM40,000.

ADEQUACY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GROUP’S RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

In addition to the assurance received from the Executive Chairman and Chief Financial Officer on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control system, the Board is of the view that the system of risk management and
internal control, which has been implemented within the Group is sound and effective. It has not resulted in any material losses
and contingencies during the financial year ended 30 June 2022. The risk management and internal control procedures will be
reviewed continuously in order to improve and strengthen the system to ensure ongoing adequacy, integrity and effectiveness
so as to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ investments.

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to Paragraph 15.23 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the External
Auditors have reviewed this statement for inclusion in the Annual Report 2022. Their review has been performed in accordance
with Audit and Assurance Practice Guide 3 (“APPG3”) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Based on their review, the External Auditors reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention which has caused
them to believe that this statement is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the disclosures required by
paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers

to be set out, nor is factually incorrect.

This statement was presented and approved at the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 11 October 2022.
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Utilisation of Proceeds
There were no proceeds raised from any corporate proposal during the financial year.
Audit and Non-Audit Fees

Audit and non-audit fees incurred for services rendered to the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended
30 June 2022 by the Company’s Auditors, or a firm or company affiliated to the Auditors’ firm are as follows:

Audit Fees Non-Audit Fees

Category (RM) (RM)
Company 45,000 61,586
Subsidiaries 294,229 47,815

339,229 109,401

Material Contract

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving the interest of Directors and
major shareholders, either still subsisting at the end of the financial year or entered into since the end of the previous
financial year.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions

The details of the related party transactions can be found on page 121 and 122.
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Statement Of Directors’ Responsibility
For Preparing The Financial Statements

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2016 to prepare financial statements for each financial year which have been

made out in accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs

of the Group and the Company at the end of the financial year and of the results and cash flows of the Group and the Company

for the financial year.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have:

+ Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

+ Made judgement and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ Ensured that all applicable approved accounting standards have been followed; and

» Prepared financial statements on the going concern basis as the Directors have a reasonable expectation, having made due
enquiries, that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future.

The Directors have responsibility for ensuring the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable

accuracy the financial position of the Group and the Company and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements

comply with the Companies Act 2016.

The Directors have overall responsibilities for taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of
the Group as well as to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The above statement of the Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial statements was made in accordance with a
Board resolution dated 11 October 2022.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2022.
Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are stated in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the financial year.

Results
Group Company
RM RM
Profit net of tax 183,625,223 127,274,930
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 180,195,670 127,274,930
Non-controlling interests 3,429,553 -

183,625,223 127,274,930

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the
financial statements.

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

Dividend

There was no dividend proposed, declared or paid by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. The Directors
do not recommend any dividend to be paid in respect of the current financial year.

Directors
The names of the Directors of the Company who served during the financial year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Ng Chin Shin

Ng Chin Keuan

Ng Chin Heng

Jacob O Pang Su Yin

Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang
Intizam Bin Ayub
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Directors (Cont’d)

The names of Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries who served during the financial year and up to the date of this report,
not including those Directors mentioned above, are as follows:

Pang Fong Thau
Ng Chin Kok

Ng San Chen
Alice Ng

Liow Ming Yew
Lau Joo Ting
Bali Bin Wutung
Ng San Yang

Directors’ Benefits

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the
Company was a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than benefits
included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by the Directors or the fixed salary of a full-
time employee of the Company or related corporations) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation
with any Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which Director has a substantial
financial interest, except for any benefits which may be deemed to arise from transactions entered into in the ordinary course of
business with a company in which certain Directors have substantial financial interests as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Remuneration

The details of the Directors’ remuneration paid or payable to the Directors of the Company during the financial year are as
follows:

Group Company

RM RM

Fees 102,000 102,000
Salaries, wages and bonuses 1,563,485 -
Defined contribution plan 39,168 960
Share-based payment expenses 2,134,000 145,500
3,838,653 248,460

The estimated monetary value of benefits-in-kind provided by the Group and the Company to the Directors of the Company
were RM36,550 and RM 13,325 respectively.

The Company maintains a corporate liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the financial year,

which provides appropriate insurance cover for the Directors and officers of the Group. The amount of insurance premium paid
by the Company during the financial year amounted to RM19,991.
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Directors’ Interests

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of Directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares
and options over unissued shares of the Company during the financial year were as follows:

Number of Ordinary Shares
The Company 1.7.2021 Acquired Sold 30.6.2022

Direct Interests:

Ng Chin Heng 28,857,100 649,600 - 29,506,700
Ng Chin Shin 23,851,320 - - 23,851,320
Ng Chin Keuan 23,691,587 - - 23,691,587

Indirect Interests:

Ng Chin Heng (#) 216,839,900 - - 216,839,900
Ng Chin Keuan (%) 20,000 - - 20,000

# Interest by virtue of shares held by spouse, children and by Ivory Asia Sdn. Bhd.
N Interest by virtue of shares held by spouse.

Number of Options Over Unissued Ordinary Shares

The Company 1.7.2021 Granted Exercised 30.6.2022
Ng Chin Heng - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Ng Chin Shin - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Ng Chin Keuan - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Jacob O Pang Su Yin - 200,000 - 200,000
Loh Thian Sang @ Lo Thian Siang - 200,000 - 200,000
Intizam Bin Ayub - 200,000 - 200,000

Ng Chin Heng, by virtue of his interests in shares in the Company, is deemed interested in the shares of all the subsidiaries to
the extent the Company has an interest, in accordance with Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.

The other Directors holding office at the end of the financial year had no interest in shares of the Company or its related
corporations during the financial year.

Issue of Shares and Debentures

During the financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM307,049,826 to RM311,976,178
by way of the issuance of 3,997,040 new ordinary shares from the exercise of options under the Company’s Employees’ Share
Option Scheme at the exercise price of RM0.99 per ordinary share.

The new ordinary shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

The Company did not issue any debentures during the financial year.

Treasury Shares

During the financial year, the Company repurchased 829,000 of its issued ordinary shares from the open market at an average
price of approximately RM0.76 per share. The total consideration paid for the repurchase including transaction costs was
RM635,935. The shares repurchased are being held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127(6) of the Companies
Act 2016 and are presented as a deduction from equity.

As at 30 June 2022, the Company held as treasury shares a total of 12,801,500 of its 539,347,071 issued and fully paid-up

ordinary shares. Such treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of RM13,336,455 and further relevant details are disclosed
in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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Options Granted Over Unissued Shares

During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares in the
Company except for the share options granted pursuant to the Company’s Employees’ Share Option Scheme below.

Employees’ Share Option Scheme

The Employees’ Share Option Scheme of the Company (“ESOS”) is governed by the ESOS By-Laws and was approved by
shareholders on 16 December 2021. The ESOS is to be in force for a period of 5 years effective from 16 December 2021.

The details of the ESOS are disclosed in Note 30(c) to the financial statements.

Other Statutory Information

(a)

50

Before the statements of profit or loss, statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the
Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

() to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance
for impairment losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that
adequate allowance had been made for impairment losses on receivables; and

(i) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting records in the
ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:

() the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for impairment losses on receivables inadequate
to any substantial extent; and

(i) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render adherence
to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements
misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

() any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(i) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

In the opinion of the Directors:

() no contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, will or may affect the ability
of the Group or of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due; and

(i) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the

financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group
or of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.
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Subsidiaries

The details of the Group’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.

Significant Event During The Financial Year

The significant event of the Group and of the Company during the financial year is disclosed in Note 40 to the financial
statements.

Auditors

The auditors, Crowe Malaysia PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

The auditors’ remuneration are disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements.

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors as part of the terms of its audit engagement
against any claims by third parties arising from the audit. No payment has been made to indemnify the auditors neither during

the financial year nor since the end of the financial year.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 21 October 2022.

Ng Chin Shin Ng Chin Keuan
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Statement by Directors
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

We, Ng Chin Shin and Ng Chin Keuan, being two of the Directors of Coastal Contracts Bhd., do hereby state that, in the opinion
of the Directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 57 to 145 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2022 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 21 October 2022.

Ng Chin Shin Ng Chin Keuan

Statutory Declaration
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

I, Kong Wei Ket, MIA Membership Number: CA34621, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of
Coastal Contracts Bhd., do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 57
to 145 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the
declaration to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared

by the abovementioned Kong Wei Ket
at Sandakan in the State of Sabah

on this 21 October 2022.

Kong Wei Ket

Before me
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of COASTAL CONTRACTS BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No : 200001015043 (517649-A)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Coastal Contracts Bhd., which comprise the statements of financial position as at
30 June 2022 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss, statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 57
to 145.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
of the Company as at 30 June 2022, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment Assessment on Trade Receivables
Refer to Note 21 to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Trade receivables are a major component of the financial | Our procedures included, amongst others:

position of the Group.
® Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions

and judgements used to calculate the likelihood of default
and estimation on the adequacy of the Group’s expected
credit loss allowance on trade receivables.

The Group assessed at each reporting date whether the trade
receivables carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired.
The Group have applied simplified method to determine the
allowance for impairment of trade receivables. The expected | 4
credit loss model involves the use of various assumptions,
economic factors and historical credit behaviour of trade
receivables. -

Reviewing the recoverability of major receivables including
but not limited to the review of subsequent collections.

Reviewing the ageing of trade receivables.

There is significant degree of Management estimation and | m Reviewing collections and sales trends during the financial
judgement involved in the calculation of expected credit year of major receivables.

loss, risk of default and the inherent uncertainties during the
estimation process.
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Registration No : 200001015043 (517649-A)

Net Realisable Value of Inventories
Refer to Note 20 to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Inventories are a major component of the financial position
of the Group. Included in inventories are unsold vessels with
carrying amounts of RM13.1 million as at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group assessed at each reporting date whether the
inventories are carried at the lower of costs and net realisable
value. The net realisable value of the unsold vessels was
assessed on the basis of their respective completed state
and after taking into consideration of the prevailing market
conditions for the supply and demand for such vessels.

There is a significant degree of Management judgement
involved and assumptions of future events that are inherently
uncertain in the assessment of net realisable value of the
unsold vessels. Possible changes in judgements and related
estimates of the unsold vessels’ net realisable value could
result in material adjustments to the inventories carrying
amounts.

Our procedures included, amongst others:

® Reviewing whether inventories are carried at the lower of
costs and net realisable value.

® Evaluating the qualification, = competence and
independence of the external expert valuer and reviewing
the terms of engagement of the expert appointed by the
Group to determine whether there were any matters that
might have affected their objectivity.

® Assessing the methodology adopted by management and
its appointed expert valuer in calculating the fair market
value of the unsold vessels.

® Reviewing the reasonableness and validating the
assumptions used by management and its appointed
expert valuer in arriving at the vessel valuation.

® Checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data
provided by Management to the external expert valuer.

® Assessing the adequacy for inventory writedown.

Investment in a Joint Venture
Refer to Note 15(b) to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Group’s 100% interest in the investment of a significant
joint venture for the financial year is accounted for under
the equity method. The Group’s share of profit after taxation
and net assets of the joint venture was RM51.5 million and
RM93.8 million respectively.

In the context of our audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, the key audit matters relating to the
Group’s share of profit after taxation and net assets of the
joint venture are as follows:

(i) Revenue recognition

Given the significant risk involved when auditing
revenue, we have reviewed the component auditor’s
working papers to ensure sufficient audit procedures
had been performed, and the joint venture’s revenue
recognition policy was consistent with the accounting
standards and has been applied consistently.

(ii) Impairment assessment of trade receivables

The assessment on impairment of trade receivables
involves significant management estimation and
judgement in the calculation of expected credit loss,
risk of default and the inherent uncertainties during the
estimation process.

We have communicated with the joint venture’s component
auditor and discussed their identified audit risk areas. The
audited financial information of the component auditor is
used as evidence in the Group audit.

The procedures included, amongst others:

® Evaluating the competence and independence of the
component auditor of the joint venture.

® Determining and communicating the audit risk areas in the
context of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
to the component auditor of the joint venture.

® Reviewing the working papers of the component auditor
of the joint venture.

® Determining adequacy of the work performed to address
the audit risk areas identified in the context of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No : 200001015043 (517649-A)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
and the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s
internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

As a part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: (Cont’d)

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of which we have
not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act
2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Crowe Malaysia PLT Chan Kuan Chee
201906000005 (LLP0018817-LCA) & AF 1018 02271/10/2023 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur

21 October 2022
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Statements of Profit or Loss
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

Note

Revenue 4

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other items of income
Interest income

Other income
Reversal of impairment loss on receivables

o O U1

Other items of expenses
Marketing and distribution
Administrative expenses
Finance costs 7
Other expenses
Net impairment loss on receivables 8
Share of profit of joint venture, net of tax

Profit/(Loss) before tax 9
Income tax expense 12
Profit/(Loss) net of tax

Profit/(Loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company (sen):

Basic 13

Diluted 13

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

RM RM RM RM
232,698,554 161,571,425 129,730,335 56,235,200
(144,613,981) (111,542,265) - -
88,084,573 50,029,160 129,730,335 56,235,200
27,181,200 3,181,817 15,210,421 512,083
98,887,686 40,039,630 18,526,446 4,331,320
- - 12,841,194 -

(386,316) (113,306) - -
(30,242,787) (17,333,303) (2,916,622) (1,312,925)
(15,174,927) (6,586,563) (6,548,465) (235)
(4,574,602) (16,758,207) (85,955,923) (40,100,356)
(1,557,506) (555,318) - (85,734,813)
51,485,391 - - -
213,702,712 51,908,910 130,887,386 (66,069,726)
(80,077,489) (19,283,475) (8,612,456) (38,740)
183,625,223 32,620,435 127,274,930 (66,108,466)
180,195,670 32,375,524 127,274,930 (66,108,466)
3,429,553 244,911 - -
183,625,223 32,620,435 127,274,930 (66,108,466)

34.41 6.17
33.93 6.17
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Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

Profit/(Loss) net of tax

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
will be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive
income of joint venture

Cash flow hedges

Net other comprehensive income/
(loss) will be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
183,625,223 32,620,435 127,274,930 (66,108,466)
48,661,820 (12,114,381) - -
6,551,860 - - -
25,885 (141,727) - -
55,239,565 (12,256,108) - -
238,864,788 20,364,327 127,274,930 (66,108,466)
235,228,012 20,095,573 127,274,930 (66,108,466)
3,636,776 268,754 - -
238,864,788 20,364,327 127,274,930 (66,108,466)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2022

Note 2022 2021
RM RM
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in joint ventures 15 95,595,044 -
Property, plant and equipment 16 714,619,101 774,349,711
Right-of-use assets 17 7,739,481 8,867,949
Investment properties 18 3,239,959 3,321,983
Investment securities 19 11,957,574 12,124,337
Trade receivables 21 125,904,097 -
959,055,256 798,663,980
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 20 25,017,154 120,310,703
Trade and other receivables 21 789,138,097 200,996,163
Contract assets 22 212,073 1,232,557
Short-term investments 23 15,553,665 111,038,412
Tax recoverable 252,746 237,095
Cash and bank balances 24 223,114,308 163,702,961
1,053,288,043 597,517,891
TOTAL ASSETS 2,012,343,299 1,396,181,871
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings 25 343,766,399 43,419,317
Lease liabilities 26 571,051 1,012,450
Trade and other payables 27 182,391,711 192,793,154
Income tax payable 2,850,396 3,977,955
Derivative liabilities 28 - 26,074
529,579,557 241,228,950
NET CURRENT ASSETS 523,708,486 356,288,941

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings 25
Lease liabilities 26
Deferred tax liabilities 29
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Share capital 30
Treasury shares 30
Other reserves 31

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2022 2021

RM RM
119,520,738 48,862,404
183,305 712,037
4,196,028 589,246
123,900,071 50,163,687
653,479,628 291,392,637

1,358,863,671

1,104,789,234

311,976,178

(13,336,455)
332,072,393
723,459,390

307,049,826
(12,700,520)

266,143,178

543,241,361

1,354,171,506
4,692,165

1,103,733,845
1,055,389

1,358,863,671

1,104,789,234

2,012,343,299

1,396,181,871

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in joint ventures
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment securities

Other receivables

CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables
Short-term investments

Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities

Other payables
Income tax payable

NET CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities

Other payables
Deferred tax liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY

Share capital
Treasury shares
Other reserves

Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

21
23

24

25
26
27
29

Annual Report 2022

2022 2021

RM RM
752,567,763 465,535,685
5,440 -

28,480 38,073

8,663 2,883
7,121,721 7,812,120
167,265,707 -
926,997,774 473,388,761
379,805,771 357,505,380
10,914,681 97,405,700

- 23,076

158,628,075 44,557,850
549,348,527 499,492,006
1,476,346,301 972,880,767
315,851,498 -
5,775 2,967

724,291 173,538
11,693 -
316,593,257 176,505
232,755,270 499,315,501
41,008,268 -
2,968 -

1,992 7,449
3,564,462 6,038
44,577,690 13,487
361,170,947 189,992
1,115,175,354 972,690,775
311,976,178 307,049,826
(13,336,455)  (12,700,520)
10,896,873 -
805,638,758 678,341,469
1,115,175,354 972,690,775
1,476,346,301 972,880,767

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Dividend income

Interest income
Fair value gain on short-term investments
Fair value gain on investment securities
Gain on disposal of investment securities
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Gain on lease modification
Income from investments
Premium income arising from guarantee
contracts issued
Reversal of inventories written down
Reversal of impairment loss on plant
and equipment
Amortisation of transaction costs capitalised
Interest expense
Net impairment loss/(reversal of
impairment loss) on receivables
Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Fair value loss on investment securities
Fair value loss on short-term investments
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries
Inventories written off
Inventories written down
Plant and equipment written off
Prepayment written off
Share of profit of joint venture
Share-based payment expenses
Net unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign exchange

Total adjustments

Operating cash flows before changes
in working capital

Changes in working capital

Net change in accounts with subsidiaries
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in contract assets
Increase in payables

Total changes in working capital

Cash flows from/(used in) operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Note

0] [e)]e)] DO OoOOOo 0N

~N N

© OO O©WOOOooooo

24(b)

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

RM RM RM RM
213,702,712 51,908,910 130,887,386 (66,069,726)
- - (129,730,335) (56,235,200)
(27,181,200) (3,181,817 (15,210,421) (512,083)
(23,102) (1,098,185) - (1,035,369)

- (121,372) - -
- (772,883) - (753,683)
(33,234,770) (54,275) - -
- (1,079) - -
(1,614,183) (2,865,925) (1,220,361) (2,495,792)
- - (8,757) (11,892)
(1,755,497) (1,643) - -
(6,920,126) - - -
1,459,682 - 1,449,809 -
4,309,911 6,586,563 1,691,359 235
1,557,506 555,318 (12,841,194) 85,734,813
82,024 82,025 - -
94,334,522 82,980,627 19,718 19,575
1,215,274 1,194,182 5,771 5,767
1,005,502 716,290 983,851 716,290
146,246 - 137,857 -

- - 34,834,215 27,232,798

- 599 - -

31,566 - - -

958 313,920 - -

- 412,540 - -
(51,485,391) - - -
11,888,514 - 632,391 -
(7,840,446) 5,052,254 (8,329,042) 5,232,265
(14,023,010) 89,797,139 (127,585,139) 57,897,724
199,679,702 141,701,049 3,302,247 (8,172,002)
- - 191,806,232 (259,778,075)
(1,575,604) 14,777,347 - -
(121,115,584) (25,158,128) (890,661) 5,977,212
1,020,484 (1,232,557) - -
28,935,359 6,754,856 421,287 1,017
(92,735,345) (4,858,482) 191,336,858 (253,799,846)
106,944,357 136,842,567 194,639,105 (261,971,848)
(4,178,112) (4,909,756) (1,568,453) (235)
(21,355,961) (17,352,309) (19,263) (85,735)
81,410,284 114,580,502 193,051,389 (262,007,818)
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Investing Activities

Addition to right-of-use assets
Additional investment in existing

subsidiaries

Cash flows for loss of control in

a subsidiary

Income received from investments

Interest received

Investment in a joint venture

Loans to a joint venture

Loans to a subsidiary

Net dividend received

Net proceeds from disposal of
short-term investments

Net purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from disposal of plant and

equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows (used in)/from
investing activities

Financing Activities

Purchase of treasury shares

Proceeds from issuance of shares
to non-controlling interests

Proceeds from exercise of ESOS

Proceeds from drawdown of loans

Repayment of loans

Repayment of lease liabilities

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Effect of foreigh exchange rate

changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end

of year

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note

16

24(b)
24(b)
24(b)

24(a)

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

RM RM RM RM

- (160,813) - -
- - (310,615,610) (148,862)
(10,616,079) - - -
1,614,183 2,865,925 1,220,361 2,495,792
17,810,323 4,907,544 376,507 939,352
(26,088,097) - - -
(532,509,191) - - -
- - (339,489,907) -

- - 129,730,335 56,235,200
95,361,603 149,753,004 86,353,162 151,586,796
(584,973) (9,916,986) (39,686) (7,683,253)
115,104,430 54,388 - -
(36,166,521) (177,025,738) (10,125) (8,480)
(876,074,322) (29,522,676) (432,474,963) 203,421,545
(635,935) (2,301,061) (635,935) (2,301,061)

- 809,260 - -

3,957,070 - 3,957,070 -
427,363,861 3,286,771 358,639,215 -
(73,151,967) (180,034,495) (7,920,563) -
(1,0583,158) (1,041,469) (5,775) (5,765)
356,479,871 (179,280,994) 349,034,012 (2,306,826)
61,815,833 (94,223,168) 109,610,438 (60,893,099)
(2,404,486) (5,866,621) 4,459,787 165,734
163,702,961 263,792,750 44,557,850 105,285,215
223,114,308 163,702,961 158,628,075 44,557,850
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

Corporate Information

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is located at Block G, Lot 3B, Bandar
Leila, W. D. T. 259, 90009 Sandakan, Sabah. The principal place of business is located at Block G, Lot 3B, Bandar Leila,
90000 Sandakan, Sabah. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are stated in Note 14 to the financial statements. There have been no significant
changes in the nature of the principal activities during the financial year.

2.1

2.2

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (MFRSs), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting
policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM).
Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:

On 1 July 2021, the Group and the Company adopted the following amended MFRSs mandatory for annual financial
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2021.

Description
Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and MFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The adoption of the above amended MFRSs did not have any material impact on the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements.

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Effective for
annual periods
Description beginning on or after

MFRSs and/or IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments)

MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
Amendments to MFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Deferred
Amendments to MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
Amendment to MFRS 17: Initial Application of MFRS 17 and

MFRS 9 — Comparative Information 1 January 2023
Amendments to MFRS 101: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
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2.

68

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

23

2.4

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective. (Cont’d)

Effective for
annual periods
Description beginning on or after

MFRSs and/or IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments) (Cont’d)

Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
Amendments to MFRS 108: Disclosure of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
Amendments to MFRS 112: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction 1 January 2023
Amendments to MFRS 116: Property, Plant and Equipment -

Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
Amendments to MFRS 137: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 - 2020 Cycles 1 January 2022

The adoption of the above standards and interpretations (including the consequential amendments, if any) is expected
to have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company upon their initial application.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following:

(i) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

(i) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(iiiy The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Company considers the following
in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power over the
investee:

()  The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;

(i)  Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

(i) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iv) Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company
loses control of the subsidiary. All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests (NCI) even if that results in a deficit balance.
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2.5

Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the NCI are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The resulting difference is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company. No gain or loss is recognised on the change.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and any NCI, is recognised in profit or loss. The subsidiary’s
cumulative gain or loss which has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss or where applicable, transferred directly to retained earnings. The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date control is lost is regarded as the cost on initial recognition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

With the exception of business combinations involving entities under common control, acquisitions of subsidiaries are
accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or a
liability, will be recognised in accordance with MFRS 9 either in the statement of profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured until it is finally
settled within equity.

In business combinations achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether NCI in the acquiree is recognised on the
acquisition date at fair value, or at the NClI’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the amount of
NCI in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any),
over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. In instances where
the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as gain on bargain purchase in the statement of profit
or loss on the acquisition date.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following:

() Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

(i)  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(iiiy The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
In the Company'’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment

losses. The cost of the investments includes transaction costs. On disposal of such investments, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss.
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2.6 Foreign Currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the parent
company’s functional currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct
method of consolidation and has elected to recycle the gain or loss that arises from disposal of a foreign operation
using this method.

(a)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a
foreign operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Foreign operations

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RM at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; attributed to the owners of the Company and non-
controlling interest, as appropriate. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of an intragroup loan is neither planned nor likely
to occur in the foreseeable future, the exchange differences arising from translating such monetary item are
considered to form part of a net investment in the foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive
income. The cumulated foreign currency differences are not reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
net investment.
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2.7

2.8

Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Cost includes expenditure that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent to recognition, all property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation,
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
asset to its residual value over the estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and workshops 10 - 15 years
Heavy machinery and equipment 5-18 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Renovation 5-10 years
Slipway and shipyard infrastructure 10 - 20 years
Telecommunications and office equipment, furniture and fittings 5-10years
Vessels and offshore assets 8 - 15 years

Assets under construction are not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Any changes are accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the assets is included in the profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties which are owned or right-of-use asset held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment properties which are owned are initially measured at cost, including transaction
costs. The right-of-use asset held under a lease contract that meets the definition of investment property is measured
initially similarly as other right-of-use assets. Subsequent to recognition, investment properties are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets of 50 years.
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently

withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement
or disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
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2.9

Current versus Non-Current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.10 Financial Instruments

72

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group has
become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial instruments are classified as financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement and their definitions in MFRS 132. Interest, dividends, gains and losses
relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability are reported as an expense or income. Distributions to holders
of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity.

Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value (other than trade receivables without significant financing
component which are measured at transaction price as defined in MFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
at inception). Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument
(other than a financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss) are added to/deducted from the fair value on
initial recognition, as appropriate. Transaction costs on the financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the individual policy statement
associated with each item.

(a) Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value
(through profit or loss, or other comprehensive income), depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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2.10 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(a)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Debt instruments
Amortised cost

The financial asset is held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When the asset has subsequently become credit-impaired, the
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts), excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life
of the financial asset or a shorter period (where appropriate).

Fair value through other comprehensive income

The financial asset is held for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset, where the
asset’s cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, except for the recognition
of impairment, interest income and foreign exchange difference which are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss

All other financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets
change.

Equity instruments

All equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in profit or loss
except where the Group has elected to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve at initial recognition.

The designation at fair value through other comprehensive income is not permitted if the equity investment
is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise.

Dividend income from this category of financial assets is recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to

receive payment is established unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the equity
investments.
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2.10 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either held for trading or are
designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise. The changes in fair value of these financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts), through the expected life of the financial
liability or a shorter period (where appropriate).

Equity instruments
Equity instruments classified as equity are measured initially at cost and are not remeasured subsequently.
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.
Treasury shares

When the Company’s own shares recognised as equity are bought back, the amount of the consideration paid,
including all costs directly attributable, are recognised as a deduction from equity. Own shares purchased that
are not subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from total
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury
shares.

Where treasury shares are reissued by resale, the difference between the sales consideration received and the
carrying amount of the treasury shares is recognised in equity.

Where treasury shares are cancelled, their costs are transferred to retained earnings.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value on derivatives during the reporting period, other than those accounted for under hedge
accounting, are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Any derivative embedded in a financial asset is not accounted for separately. Instead, the entire hybrid contract
is classified and subsequently measured as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract which is a financial liability as a
derivative if, and only if, its risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.10 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(e)

U]

(9)

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of a debt instrument classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, there is no subsequent reclassification of the fair value
reserve to profit or loss following the derecognition of an equity investment.

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specific debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as liabilities at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are recognised as income in profit or loss over
the period of the guarantee or, when there is no specific contractual period, recognised in profit or loss upon
discharge of the guarantee. If the debtor fails to make payment relating to a financial guarantee contract when it
is due and the Company as the issuer, is required to reimburse the holder for the associated loss, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of the credit loss determined in accordance with the expected credit loss
model and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risks, including
interest rate swap.

Hedge accounting
The Group designates the derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of interest rate risk in cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether
the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the cash flow hedge
reserve, limited to the lower of cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and cumulative change in
fair value of the hedged item, from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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2.10 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(9)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Cont’d)
Cash flow hedges (Cont’d)

Subsequently, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity
into profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast cash flows affects profit
or loss. If the hedged item is a non-financial asset or liability, the associated gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income is removed from equity and included in the initial amount of the asset or liability directly.
However, loss recognised in other comprehensive income that will not be recovered in one or more future
periods is reclassified from equity into profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss accumulated in
the cash flow hedge reserve at that time remains in equity and is reclassified to profit or loss when the forecast
transaction occurs recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve
is reclassified immediately to profit or loss.

2.11 Contract Costs

(@)

(b)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

The Group recognises incremental costs of obtaining contracts with customers as an asset when the Group
expects to recover these costs. When the amortisation period of the asset is one year or less, such costs are
recognised as an expense immediately when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract
The Group recognises costs that relate directly to a contract (or an anticipated contract) with customer as

an asset when the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group, will be used in satisfying performance
obligation in the future and are recovered.

The contract costs are initially measured at cost and amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
pattern of revenue recognition to which the asset relates.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss when the carrying amount of the contract cost exceeds the
expected revenue less expected cost that will be incurred. Any impairment loss recovered shall be reversed to the
extent of the carrying amount of the contract cost does not exceed the amount that would have been recognised had
there been no impairment loss recognised previously.

2.12 Contract Asset and Contract Liability

A contract asset is recognised when the Group’s right to consideration is conditional on something other than the
passage of time. A contract asset is subject to impairment requirements of MFRS 9: Financial Instruments.

A contract liability is stated at cost and represents the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which consideration has been received (or the amount is due) from the customers.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less and short term deposits pledged to banks.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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2.14 Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of raw materials and spare parts are determined using the weighted average method. The cost of raw
materials comprises costs of purchase. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress are determined using
specific identification of their individual costs. The costs of finished goods and work-in-progress comprise costs of
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and appropriate proportions of manufacturing overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any inventories are impaired by comparing the carrying amount
of each item of inventory with its selling price less costs to complete and sell. If an item of inventory is impaired, the
carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

2.15 Impairment
(@) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortised cost, trade and other receivables and contract assets, as well as on financial guarantee
contracts.

The expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. The Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments
that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, and does not reduce the carrying
amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGU are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of units and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the units or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
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2.15 Impairment (Cont’d)

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties
previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI
up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

2.17 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred by using the effective interest method.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the Company incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

2.18 Employee Benefits

(@) Short-term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Short-term accumulating compensated
absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase
their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.
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2.18 Employee Benefits (Cont’d)

(b) Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in which it has
operations. The Malaysian companies in the Group make contributions to the Employee Provident Fund in
Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

(c) Share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan, under which the Group receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company (known as “share options”).

At grant date, the fair value of the share options is recognised as an expense on a straight-line method over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding credit to share option reserve in equity. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of the share options that are expected to vest. Service and non-market performance
conditions attached to the transaction are not taken into account in determining the fair value.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, the grant of the share options to the subsidiaries’ employees
is not recognised as an expense. Instead, the fair value of the share options measured at the grant date is
accounted for as an increase to the investment in subsidiary undertaking with a corresponding credit to the
employee share option reserve.

Upon expiry of the share option, the share option reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

When the share options are exercised, the share option reserve is transferred to share capital if new ordinary
shares are issued, or to treasury shares if the share options are satisfied by the reissuance of treasury shares.

2.19 Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. The Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for low-value assets and short-term leases with 12 months or less. For these leases, the Group recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line method over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components. Instead, the Group has
accounted for the lease component and the associated non-lease components as a single lease arrangement.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
assets that do not meet the definition of investment property and the associated lease liabilities are presented as a
separate line item in the statements of financial position.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. Cost includes the initial amount of the corresponding lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred,
less any incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The depreciation starts from the commencement date of
the lease. If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asset to the earlier of the end
of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use
assets are determined on the same basis as those property, plant and equipment.
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2.19 Leases (Cont’d)

Thelease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in the future lease payments (other than lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease) with the corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is
recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount has been reduced to zero.

2.20 Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.



Coastal Contracts Bhd. Registration No. 200001015043 (517649-A)

Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022 (cont’d.)

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

2.21 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised by reference to each distinct performance obligation in the
contract with customer. Revenue from contracts with customers is measured at its transaction price, being the
amount of consideration which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, net of sales and service tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control over a product or service to customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

Depending on the substance of the contract, revenue is recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied,
which may be at a point in time or over time. The Group transfers control of a good or service at a point in time unless
one of the following over time criteria is met:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as the Group performs.

The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced.

The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed todate.

Construction of vessels

The Group builds vessels under long-term construction contracts on both build-to-order and build-to-stock
basis. For build-to-order vessels, it typically commences the construction process only upon securing a firm
order from a customer. For build-to-stock vessels, however, it commences the construction of the vessels in
anticipation of future or potential orders and seeks to sell the vessels to customers at a later stage when the
selling prices are favourable.

Revenue from construction contract for built-to-order vessel is recognised over time in the period in which the
services are rendered using the output method by reference to the construction progress based on the physical
proportion of construction work. Transaction price is computed based on the price specified in the contract and
adjusted for any variable consideration such as penalties. Past experience is used to estimate and provide for
the variable consideration, using expected value method and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

The Group has assessed and determined that the performance obligations for built-to-stock vessels are satisfied
at a point in time as none of the criteria for satisfaction of performance obligations over time is met. The Group
performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Group and the Group does not have an
enforceable right to payment for work completed to date.

Chartering services

The service element of the Group’s charter contracts is recognised over time in the period when the services are
rendered, since the performance obligation is satisfied over time. When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance (such as revenues from reimbursements,
bunkers and other goods and services provided to customers), related revenues are recognised in the period in
which such goods or services are transferred to the customers.

Ship repair and maintenance services

Revenue from providing ship repair and maintenance are recognised over time in the period in which the services
are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end
of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer receives and
uses the benefits simultaneously. For variable-price contracts, revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. Past experience is used to estimate and provide for the
variable consideration.
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2.22 Revenue from Other Sources and Other Operating Income

(a)

(b)

(c)

Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues over the term of the lease.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit or loss except for

interest income arising from temporary investment of borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset which is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.

2.23 Income Taxes

(a)

(b)

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income.

Current tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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